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To Our Shareholders

The story that ties together the data and narratives in this year’s Annual Report is the great
progress we made in 2005 in transforming Agilent from a diversified technology company into a
focused measurement company. We-launched this strategic shift because we are convinced that
greater emphasis on the strengths that make Agilent the world’s premier measurement company —
including our deep technical expertise and long-standing customer relationships — will enable us
to deliver optimal value to customers and to shareholders.

To effect this transformation, in 2005 we sold the semiconductor products business;
announced plans to spin off the semiconductor test business as an independent company; sold
our interest in a joint venture to our partner Philips; retired our convertible debt; and launched a
major share repurchase program. We're excited about the opportunities we see in the $40 billion
dollar market for measurement in electronics, communications, life sciences and chemical
analysis, and we will continue to pursue those opportunities aggressively.

We are building a more focused Agilent on a very solid foundation. The company is in
excellent financial condition, thanks to improved operating performance over the last several
years and outstanding cash generation during 2005. We have robust new-product pipelines in all
our businesses, leadership positions in our markets and close, collaborative relationships with
customers who lead their industries. Our people have the skills, dedication and flexibility it will
take for us to achieve our goals and to innovate in ways that make a difference to our customers.

In 2006 our intent is to strengthen and build upon our position as the world’s premier
measurement company. To do that we will deliver compelling products to our markets and will
work to enhance customer preference and loyalty while maintaining tight operating and financial
discipline. We are determined to deliver on our commitment to increase shareholder value as we
lead Agilent to reach its full potential.

ol Ko

Bill Sullivan
President and Chief Executive Officer
January 18, 2006
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Agilent at a Glance

Agilent is the world’s premier measurement company, providing core bio-analytical and
electronic measurement solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical

analysis industries.

About 65 percent of Agilent’s total net revenue was generated from outside of the United
States in fiscal 2005. With approximately 21,000 employees around the world, our global presence
offers a competitive advantage. Agilent’s manufacturing, R&D, sales and support capabilities
around the world give customers the flexibility they need in today’s competitive environment.

Description

Business Group 2005 Net Revenue
Electronic $3.3 bilion
Measurement

Our electronic measurement business provides standard
and customized electronic measurement instruments
and systems, monitoring, management and optimization
tools for communications networks and services,
software design tools and related services that are used
in the design, development, manufacture, installation,
deployment and operation of electronics equipment and
communications networks and services. Qur electronic
measurement business employed approximately 11,500
people worldwide as of October 31, 2005.

Markets: The markets for our electronic measurement
business include communications test and general
purpose test.

Product areas: Communication test products include
products for the following types of networks and
systems: fiber optics networks, transport networks,
broadband and data networks, wireless communications
and microwave networks. We provide assistance with
installation and maintenance and operations support
systems. General purpose test products include general
purpose instruments, modular instruments and test
software, digital design products, parametric test
products, high frequency electronic design tools,
electronics manufacturing test equipment and thin-film
transistor array test equipment.




Business Group

2005 Net Revenue Description

Bio-Analytical
Measurement

$ 1 4 . Our bio-analytical measurement business provides
+‘X billion gapplication-focused solutions that include instruments,

software, consumables and services that enable
customers to identify, quantify and analyze the physical
and biological properties of substances and products.
Our bio-analytical measurement business employed
approximately 4,000 people worldwide as of October 31,
2005.

Markets: The markets for our bio-analytical
measurement business include life sciences, including
the pharmaceutical analysis, gene expression and
proteomics markets, and chemical analysis, including
the petrochemical, environmental, homeland security
and forensics and bioagriculture and food safety
markets.

Product areas: The seven key product categories for
the bio-analytical measurements business include:
microarrays, microfluidics, gas chromatography, liquid
chromatography, mass spectrometry, software and
informatics, and related consumables, reagents and
services.

Semiconductor
Test Solutions

$ 5 o Agilent’s semiconductor test solutions business delivers

+0) billion  technologies and solutions for companies who design,
manufacture and test systems-on-a-chip, systems-in-a-
package and memory semiconductor devices. Our
systems are used to test a wide range of devices, from
the extremely price-sensitive to the most complex and
high-performance. Our semiconductor test solutions
business employed approximately 1,600 people
worldwide as of October 31, 2005.

Markets: Agilent’s semiconductor test solutions
business sells to the semiconductor manufacturing
markets.

Product areas: Our semiconductor test solutions
business designs, develops and manufactures
semiconductor test equipment. We develop our
products on scalable-system architecture and then
deliver, over time, enhancements to that architecture
that extend its testing capabilities to address changing
device and production requirements.

Agilent
Laboratories

Agilent Labs is our central research organization based in Palo Alto,
California, with satellite offices in Beijing, China; Everett, Washington;
Leuven, Belgium; and South Queensferry, Scotland. Agilent Labs engages
primarily in two types of research: 1) applied research that leads to
technology that can be transferred to our existing businesses in
communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis, and

2) research that creates new businesses that are outside of our current
markets but within our fields of interest. Agilent Labs also provides
technology integration across our company.

Agilent Sales
and Support

We sell our products primarily through direct sales, but we also utilize
distributors, resellers, manufacturer’s representatives, telesales and
electronic commerce.

-
e
=]
=%
()

o
[
3
=
c

<




Officers

William P. Sullivan,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Adrian T. Dillon
Executive Vice President,
Finance and
Administration,

Chief Financial Officer

Patrick J. Byrne

Senior Vice President of
Agilent and President of
Electronic Measurement
Group

David B. Cooper, Jr.
Senior Vice President,
Finance and Treasurer

Jean M. Halloran
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

D. Craig Nordlund
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Secretary

All listed officers, except John R. Eaton, Didier Hirsch, Marie Oh Huber, Darlene Solomon, and Jack P. Trautman

Jack P. Trautman
Senior Vice President of
Agilent and President of
Semiconductor Test
Solutions

Chris van Ingen

Senior Vice President of
Agilent and President of
Life Sciences and
Chemical Analysis Group

Thomas E. White

Senior Vice President of
Agilent and President of
Operations Support
Systems Group

John R. Eaton
Vice President, Corporate
Development

Didier Hirsch
Vice President and
Corporate Controller

Marie Oh Huber

Vice President, Assistant
General Counsel and
Assistant Secretary

Darlene Solomon
Vice President and
Director of Agilent
Laboratories

Directors

James G. Cullen
Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Agilent,
Retired President and
Chief Operating Officer of
Bell Atlantic Corporation
(now known as Verizon)

Robert J. Herbold
Retired Executive Vice
President of Microsoft
Corporation

Walter B. Hewlett
Independent Researcher
and Director, Center for
Computer Assisted
Research in the
Humanities

Robert L. Joss

Dean of the Graduate
School of Business of
Stanford University

Koh Boon Hwee
Chairman of DBS Group
Holdings Ltd and

DBS Bank Ltd

Heidi Kunz

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial
Officer of Blue Shield of
California

David M. Lawrence, M.D.
Retired Chairman
Emeritus of Kaiser
Foundation Health

Plan, Inc. and Kaiser
Foundation Hospitals

A. Barry Rand
Chairman Emeritus of
Avis Group Holdings, Inc.

Board
Committees

Audit & Finance
Committee

Heidi Kunz, Chairperson
Robert J. Herbold
Robert L. Joss

Compensation Committee
David M. Lawrence, M.D.,
Chairperson

Walter B. Hewlett

Koh Boon Hwee

A. Barry Rand

Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee
James G. Cullen
Chairperson

Robert J. Herbold
Walter B. Hewlett
Robert L. Joss

Koh Boon Hwee

Heidi Kunz

David M. Lawrence, M.D.
A. Barry Rand

Executive Committee
James G. Cullen,
Chairperson

William P. Sullivan

are executive officers of Agilent under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.



Agilent’s annual meeting of shareholders will take place on Wednesday, March 1, 2006 at
10:00 a.m. at the South San Francisco Conference Center, 255 South Airport Boulevard, South San
Francisco, California.

Investor Information

Please see the full and audited financial statements and footnotes contained in this booklet.
To receive paper copies of the annual report, proxy statement, Form 10-K, earnings
announcements and other financial information, people in the United States and Canada should
call our toll-free number:; (877) 942-4200. In addition, you can access this financial information at
Agilent’s Investor Relations Web site. The address is http://www.investor.agilent.com. This
information is also available by writing to the address provided under the Investor Contact
heading below.

Corporate Governance, Business Conduct and Ethics

Agilent’'s Amended and Restated Corporate Governance Standards, the charters of our Audit
and Finance Committee, our Compensation Committee, our Executive Committee and our
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee as well as Agilent’s Standards of Business Conduct
(including code of ethics provisions that apply to our principle executive officer, principle
financial officer, controller and senior financial officers) are available on our website at
http://www.investor.agilent.com under “Corporate Governance Policies.” You can also request a
hard copy of any of this information by contacting (877) 942-4200.

Agilent submitted its Annual Certification of the Chief Executive Officer to the New York
Stock Exchange regarding the New York Stock Exchange corporate governance listing standards
on March 16, 2005. Agilent filed its Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as Exhibits 31.1 and
31.2, respectively, to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2005
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2006.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Please contact our transfer agent, at the phone number or address listed below, with any
questions about stock certificates, transfer of ownership or other matters pertaining to your stock
account.

Computershare Investor Services
P.O. Box A3504

Chicago, IL 60690-3504

United States

If calling from anywhere within the United States and Canada: (877) 309-9856.
If calling from outside the United States: (312) 588-4672.

The e-mail address for general shareholder inquiries for Computershare is:
web.queries@computershare.com.

Investor Contact

Agilent Technologies, Inc.
Investor Relations Department
395 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94306
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You can also contact the Investor Relations Department via e-mail at the Agilent Investor
Relations Web site at http://www.investor.agilent.com. Click “Information Request” under
“Investor Information” tab to send a message.

Agilent Headquarters

Agilent Technologies, Inc.
395 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94306
Phone: (650) 752-5000

Common Stock

Agilent is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and our ticker symbol is “A.” There were
approximately 56,375 registered shareholders as of January 3, 2006. We do not currently offer
direct purchase of Agilent shares from the company or a dividend re-investment plan (DRIP).

The following tables summarize the high and low stock prices by period for Agilent’s
common stock.

Fiscal 2005 High Low

First Quarter (ended January 31, 2005) $25.90 $21.43
Second Quarter (ended April 30, 2005) $24.99 $20.11
Third Quarter (ended July 31, 2005) $26.63 $20.72
Fourth Quarter (ended October 31, 2005) $34.45 $25.18
Fiscal 2004 High Low

First Quarter (ended January 31, 2004) $38.80 $24.97
Second Quarter (ended April 30, 2004) $37.62 $26.91
Third Quarter (ended July 31, 2004) $29.68 $22.63
Fourth Quarter (ended October 31, 2004) $25.31 $19.51

This Annual Report, including the letter titled “To Our Shareholders,” contains forward-
looking statements (including, without limitation, our ability to deliver value to customers and
shareholders, our future business opportunities, our plans to spin off the semiconductor test
business, new product pipelines, our future ability to innovate for our customers, our ability to
deliver compelling products to our markets, and maintenance of financial and operational
discipline) that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause resuits of Agilent to differ
materially from management’s current expectations. These risks include the ability to execute
successfully through business cycles while it continues to implement workforce and other cost
reductions; the ability to meet and achieve the benefits of its cost reduction goals and otherwise
successfully adapt its cost structures to continuing changes in business conditions; ongoing
competitive, pricing and gross margin pressures; the risk that our cost-cutting initiatives will
impair our ability to develop products and remain competitive and to operate effectively; the
impact of geopolitical uncertainties on our markets and our ability to conduct business; the ability
to improve asset performance to adapt to changes in demand; the ability to successfully introduce
new products at the right time, price and mix, unexpected delays or costs in the spin off of the
semiconductor test business and other risks detailed in Agilent’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Oct. 31,
2005.



The materials contained in this annual report are as of January 17, 2006, unless otherwise
noted. The content of this annual report contains time-sensitive information that is accurate only
as of this date. If any portion of this annual report is redistributed at a later date, Agilent will not
be reviewing or updating the material in this report.

This Annual Report contains the full, audited financials and notes thereto contained in the
following section of this booklet with the tab ‘“Annual Report Financials”. Within the Annual
Report Financials, please refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and ‘“Risks, Uncertainties and Other Factors That May Affect Future
Results” for more complete information on each of our businesses and Agilent as a whole.
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Selected Financial Data
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Unaudited)

Years Ended October 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Restated)
(in millions, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data (1, 2, 3, 4):

NetTevenuUe . . ... vttt et it et $5,139 $5,160 $ 4,468 $ 4,450 $6,545
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes. $ 254 $ 169 §$ (696) $(1,516) $ (351)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ......... $ 141 $ 127 $(1,777) $ (995) $ (264)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
BAXES . o it vt e e e e e e 186 242 (13) (27 (136)
Gain (loss) from the sale of discontinued operations,
netoftaxes. . .......... i - - - (10) 646
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting
changes.......... ... ... . ... . . o 327 369 (1,790) (1,032) 246
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of
BAXES . . . e - - - - (25)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes . . - - - - 4n
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 . ... .... - - (268) - -
Net income (10S8) . . . ..o .ottt $ 327 § 369 $(2,058) $(1,032) $ 174
Net income (loss) per share — Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... ... $ 029 %026 $ (3.76) 8% (2.14) $(0.58)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net . 0.37 0.50 (0.03) (0.06) (0.30)
Gain (loss) from the sale of discontinued
operations, net . .. ...... . ... . e - - — (0.02) 141
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net . - - - —  (0.05)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net .. ... - - - - (0.10
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 .. .. - - (0.56) - —
Net income (loss) pershare . ................ $ 066 3076 $ (435 % (2.22)% 0.38
Net income (loss) per share — Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... .. $ 028 $ 026 $ (3.76)% (2.14) $(0.58)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net . 0.37 0.49 (0.03) (0.06) (0.30)
Gain (loss) from the sale of discontinued
operations, net . . ............ ... . ... - - - (0.02) 141
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net . - — - ~ (0.05)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net .. ... - - - - (0.10)
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 .. .. - - (0.56) - -
Net income (loss) pershare . . ............... $ 065 $ 075 $ (4.35) % (2.22)$ 0.38
Weighted average shares used in computing basic net
income (loss) pershare...................... 494 483 473 465 458
Weighted average shares used in computing diluted
net income (loss) pershare................... 500 490 473 465 458
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October 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Restated)
(in millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (1, 4, 5):
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments , $2,251 $2,315 $1,595 $1,844 $1,170

Working capital . . .. ........ ... ... .. oo $2,511 $2,891 $2,140 $2,975 $2,847
Total assets. . . ... i i e e $6,751 $7,144 $6,355 $8,203 $7,986
Senior convertible debentures . . .. ................ $ — $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $ —
Stockholders’ equity . ...........oiiiiinn.. $4,081 $3,569 $2,824 $4,627 $5,659
(1) Consolidated financial data and notes for all periods present our semiconductor products and

(2

3

@

()

healthcare solutions businesses as discontinued operations.

Income from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2005 includes a pre-tax
restructuring charge of $113 million, including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of

$5 million. Income from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2004 includes a
pre-tax restructuring charge of $135 million, including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of
$18 million. Loss from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2003 includes a
pre-tax restructuring charge of $294 million, including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of
$8 million and a non-cash charge recorded during the third quarter of 2003 to establish a tax
valuation allowance of $1.4 billion. The $1.4 billion included $0.4 billion of tax benefits
recorded during the first six months of 2003 resulting in approximately $1.0 billion net tax
provision recorded within provision for taxes for the year ended October 31, 2003; the
valuation allowance essentially eliminated our net deferred tax assets. Loss from continuing
operations for the year ended October 31, 2002 includes a pre-tax restructuring charge of
$357 million including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of $123 million. Income from
continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2001 includes a pre-tax gain of

$269 million relating to the sale of surplus land in California, inventory charges of

$376 million, a pre-tax restructuring charge of $116 million primarily relating to severance
expenses and a pre-tax asset impairment charge of $56 million for our customer support
software.

Consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended October 31, 2001 includes the
impact of the sale of our portfolio of lease assets to CIT Group Inc. (formerly known as Tyco
Capital Corporation). In 2001, net proceeds from this sales transaction were $287 million, and
we recognized $254 million in net revenue from continuing operations and $131 million in
cost of products from continuing operations.

We have restated our historical consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2004, quarterly
financial data for the fourth quarter ended October 31, 2004, and selected financial data for
fiscal 2004 (*‘the Restatement’”). The determination to restate these consolidated financial
statements and selected financial data was made by our management in consultation with the
Audit & Finance Committee on January 13, 2006, as a result of our identification of an error
related to the accounting for income taxes. During the October 31, 2004 year-end close
process, the Company miscalculated and understated its estimate of U.S. jurisdictional loss.
By correcting the error and revising the estimate of U.S. loss, this resulted in the recognition
of additional tax benefit associated with the loss and a corresponding additional income tax
expense associated with Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes’. This error was
identified through the operation of our internal control over financial reporting in 2005. The
Restatement decreases our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2004 by $20 million and
increases net income by $20 million, or $0.04 per diluted share.

We have reclassified certain consolidated balance sheet data items in prior years to conform
to the current years’ presentation. See Note 5, “Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision
(Benefit) for Taxes”, to our consolidated financial statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report. This report contains
forward-looking statements including, without limitation, statements regarding trends and growth
in the markets we sell into, our strategic direction, our future effective tax rate and tax valuation
allowance, earnings from our foreign subsidiaries, remediation activities, new product and service
introductions, changes to our manufacturing processes, the use of contract manufacturers, the
impact of local government regulations on our ability to pay vendors or conduct operations, our
liquidity position, our ability to generate cash from continuing operations, growth in our
businesses, our investments, the potential impact of adopting new accounting pronouncements,
our financial results, our purchase commitments, our contributions to our pension plans, the
selection of discount rates and recognition of any gains or losses for our benefit plans, our
cost-control activities, savings and headcount reduction recognized from our restructuring
programs and the divestiture of our semiconductor products business, the intended spin-off of our
SOC and memory test businesses, our stock repurchase program, our transition to lower-cost
regions, the existence or length of an economic recovery that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking
statements due to various factors, including those discussed in “Factors That May Affect Future
Results” and elsewhere in our Form 10-K.

Overview

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (“we”, ““Agilent” or the “‘company’), incorporated in Delaware in
May 1999, is the world’s premier measurement company, providing core bio-analytical and
electronic measurement solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical
analysis industries. Prior to our initial public offering of 16 percent of our stock in
November 1999, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hewlett-Packard Company (*“HP'"). HP
distributed the remaining 84 percent of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in the form
of a stock dividend.
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Our fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our
fiscal year.

Restatement of 2004 Financial Statements

We have restated our historical consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2004, quarterly
financial data for the fourth quarter ended October 31, 2004, and selected financial data for fiscal
2004 (the “‘Restatement’). The determination to restate these consolidated financial statements
and selected financial data was made by our management in consultation with the Audit &
Finance Committee on January 13, 2006, as a result of our identification of an error related to the
accounting for income taxes. During the October 31, 2004 year-end close process, the Company
miscalculated and understated its estimate of U.S. jurisdictional loss. By correcting the error and
revising the estimate of U.S. loss, this resulted in the recognition of additional tax benefit
associated with the loss and a corresponding additional income tax expense associated with
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (*SFAS No. 109”). This error was identified
through the operation of our internal control over financial reporting in 2005. The Restatement
decreases our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2004 by $20 million and increases net income
by $20 million, or $0.04 per diluted share. All amounts relating to 2004 income taxes,
discontinued operations and net income results on a consolidated basis discussed in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations have



been presented on a restated basis. See Note 1A, “‘Restatement of 2004 Consolidated Financial
Statements”, to our consolidated financial statements for more information on the effect of the
restatement on 2004 amounts. The restatement had no effect on our segments’ resulits of
operations discussed herein.

Reclassifications

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended October 31,
2004 and October 31, 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation used in 2005.
See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations”, to our consolidated financial statements for further
information regarding the reclassification of financial information for discontinued operations. See
also Note 5, “Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes”, to our consolidated
financial statements for revised classification for income taxes and Note 22, “Equity in Net
Income of Unconsolidated Affiliate (including Gain) — Lumileds” to our consolidated financial
statements for reclassification of equity in net income.

Executive Summary

Agilent is the world’s premier measurement company providing core bio-analytical and
electronic measurement solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical
analysis industries. Agilent currently has three primary businesses: bio-analytical measurement,
electronic measurement and semiconductor test solutions. In August 2005, the Board of Directors
of Agilent approved the divestiture of our semiconductor products business. We subsequently
signed an Asset Purchase Agreement with Avago Technologies Ltd. (f/k/a Argos Acquisition
Pte. Ltd.) (“Avago’’) providing for the sale of our semiconductor products business for
approximately $2.66 billion. We have reflected the semiconductor products business as a
discontinued operation for all periods presented in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. In
December 2005, we completed the sale of our semiconductor products business to Avago. In
addition, we plan to spin off our semiconductor test solutions business in 2006.

Agilent’s total net revenue for the fiscal year ended 2005 was $5.1 billion, flat in comparison
to last year. In our bio-analytical business, fiscal year 2005 net revenue increased 7 percent
compared to fiscal year 2004. We have experienced some growth from mid-size pharmaceutical
companies and some growth from generic pharmaceutical companies on a worldwide basis. In our
electronic measurement business, overall demand increased in communications test solutions,
with both wireless test and wireline communication test slightly above last year. In 2005, net
revenue for our semiconductor test solutions business declined 25 percent year-over-year.
Agilent’s total net revenue in the fiscal year ended 2004 increased 15 percent in comparison to
2003.

Income from operations for the fiscal year ended 2005 was $181 million, an increase of
25 percent from $145 million in the fiscal year ended 2004 and an increase of $901 million in
comparison to the fiscal year ended 2003. Net income for the fiscal year ended 2005 was
$327 million, a decrease of 11 percent compared to $369 million for the fiscal year ended 2004.
The decrease in net income was driven by a $48 million tax charge for the fiscal year ended 2005,
associated with repatriating $970 million of offshore earnings under the American Jobs Creation
Act (“AJCA"). In the fiscal year ended 2003, we reported a net loss of $2.1 billion, mainly
attributable to a valuation allowance charge for taxes of $1.1 billion.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2005, we generated operating cash flow of $643 million,
and had a cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balance as of October 31, 2005 of
$2.3 billion. In September 2005, we completed a full redemption of $1.15 billion of our



outstanding convertible debentures with a redemption price of $1,000 per $1,000 principal
amount of the debentures, plus accrued interest.

In August 2005 and November 2005, we announced a series of actions intended to enhance
our focus as the world’s premier measurement company and enhance value for our shareholders.
See Note 24, “Subsequent Events”, to our consolidated financial statements for further
information.

The following significant events were initiated or occurred prior to the filing of our Annual
Report:

¢ In November 2005, we finalized the sale of our investment in Lumileds to Philips for
$949 miillion plus the repayment of $51 million of the outstanding principal debt plus
accrued interest due to us from Lumileds.

¢ In December 2005, we sold our semiconductor products business to Avago. We received
$2.6 billion in proceeds, subject to further purchase price adjustments.

¢ During the fourth quarter 2005, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase
program of up to $4.466 billion of our common stack. To date, we have repurchased
approximately 92 million shares for $3.3 billion leaving approximately $1.2 billion
remaining authorized under the stock repurchase program, which involved the repurchase
of 83 million shares of our common stock pursuant to an issuer self-tender announced in
November 2005.

* During the fourth quarter of 2005, we initiated plans to reduce our infrastructure costs by
more than $450 million and infrastructure-related employment by about 1,300 jobs.

Looking forward, we expect our growth to increase at the same pace as the electronic
measurement and bio-analytical measurement markets. We intend to further reduce our costs and
expenses to meet our operating cost structure goals. In addition, we plan to spin off our
semiconductor test solutions business as soon as practical in 2006.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management
bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be
reasonable. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions that may impact the company in the future, actual results may be different
from the estimates. Qur critical accounting policies are those that affect our financial statements
materially and involve difficult, subjective or complex judgments by management. Those policies
are revenue recognition, restructuring and asset impairment charges, inventory valuation,
investment impairments, stock-based compensation, retirement and post-retirement plan
assumptions, valuation of long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes.

Revenue recognition. We enter into agreements to sell products thardware or software),
services, and other arrangements (multiple element arrangements) that incilude combinations of
products and services. Revenue from product sales, net of trade discounts and allowances, is
recognized provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the
price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is considered to
have occurred when title and risk of loss have transferred to the customer. Revenue is reduced
for estimated product returns, when appropriate. For sales that include customer-specified
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acceptance criteria, revenue is recognized after the acceptance criteria have been met. For
products that include installation, if the installation meets the criteria to be considered a separate
element, product revenue is recognized upon delivery, and recognition of installation revenue
occurs when the installation is complete. Otherwise, neither the product nor the installation
revenue is recognized until the installation is complete. Revenue from services is deferred and
recognized over the contractual period or as services are rendered and accepted by the customer.
When arrangements include multiple elements, we use objective evidence of fair value to allocate
revenue to the elements and recognize revenue when the criteria for revenue recognition have
been met for each element. The amount of product revenue recognized is affected by our
judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and if so, whether vendor-
specific objective evidence of fair value exists for those elements. Changes to the elements in an
arrangement and the ability to establish vendor-specific objective evidence for those elements
could affect the timing of the revenue recognition. Most of these conditions are subjective and
actual results could vary from the estimated outcome, requiring future adjustments to revenue.

Restructuring and asset impairment charges. The three main components of our
restructuring plans are related to workforce reductions, the consolidation of excess facilities and
asset impairments. Workforce reduction charges are accrued when it is determined that a liability
has been incurred, which is generally after individuals have been notified of their termination
dates and expected severance payments. Plans to consolidate excess facilities result in charges for
lease termination fees and future commitments to pay lease charges, net of estimated future
sublease income. We recognize charges for consolidation of excess facilities when we have vacated
the premises. Asset impairments primarily consist of property, plant and equipment and are
based on an estimate of the amounts and timing of future cash flows related to the expected
future remaining use and ultimate sale or disposal of buildings and equipment. These estimates
were derived using the guidance of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS")

No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (““SFAS No. 144"),
Staff Accounting Bulletin 100, “Restructuring and Impairment Charges” (“SAB 100”"), Emerging
Issues Task Force 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”’ (“EITF 94-3’") and lastly, SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Exit
or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS No. 146’") which was effective for exit and disposal activities
initiated after December 31, 2002. If the amounts and timing of cash flows from restructuring
activities are significantly different from what we have estimated, the actual amount of
restructuring and asset impairment charges could be materially different, either higher or lower,
than those we have recorded.

Inventory valuation. We assess the valuation of our inventory on a quarterly basis and
periodically write down the value for estimated excess and obsolete inventory based upon
estimates about future demand and actual usage. Such estimates are difficult to make under most
economic conditions. The excess balance determined by this analysis becomes the basis for our
excess inventory charge. Our marketing department plays a key role in our excess inventory
review process by providing updated sales forecasts, managing product rollovers and working
with manufacturing to maximize recovery of excess inventory. If actual market conditions are less
favorable than those projected by management, additional write-downs may be required. If actual
market conditions are more favorable than anticipated, inventory previously written down may be
sold to customers, resulting in lower cost of sales and higher income from operations than
expected in that period.

Investment impairments. We recognize an impairment charge when the decline in the
fair value of our publicly traded equity securities and our cost-method investments below their
cost basis are judged to be other-than-temporary. Significant judgment is used to identify events
or circumstances that would likely have a significant adverse effect on the future use of the



investment. We consider various factors in determining whether an impairment is
other-than-temporary, including the severity and duration of the impairment, forecasted recovery,
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the investee, and our ability and intent to hold
the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market
value.

Stock-based compensation. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004)
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)""). SFAS No. 123(R) addresses all forms of share-based
payment (“SBP’") awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock
options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes our current
accounting for SBP awards under APB No. 25 and requires us to recognize compensation expense
for all SBP awards based on fair value. In March 2005, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107, “Share-Based Payment” (‘“SAB No. 107”) relating to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).
Beginning in the first quarter of 2006, we will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) under the
modified prospective transition method using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Under the
new standard, our estimate of compensation expense will require a number of complex and
subjective assumptions including our stock price volatility, employee exercise patterns (expected
life of the options), future forfeitures and related tax effects. We will recognize SBP compensation
expense for awards issued after November 1, 2005 on a straight-line basis over the vesting period
of the award. For awards issued prior to November 1, 2005, we will recognize SBP compensation
expense based on FASB Interpretation 28 “Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other
Variable Stock Option or Award Plans an interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25", which
provides for accelerated expensing. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of SFAS No. 123(R)
on our results of operations and financial condition.

Retirement and post-retirement benefit plan assumptions. Retirement and
post-retirement benefit plan costs are a significant cost of doing business. They represent
obligations that will ultimately be settled sometime in the future and therefore are subject to
estimation. Pension accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit costs over
the employees’ average expected future service to Agilent based on the terms of the plans and the
investment and funding decisions made by us. To estimate the impact of these future payments
and our decisions concerning funding of these obligations, we are required to make assumptions
using actuarial concepts within the framework of accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. Two critical assumptions are the discount rate and the expected long-term return on plan
assets. Other important assumptions include the health care cost trend rate, expected future
salary increases, expected future increases to benefit payments, expected retirement dates,
employee turnover and retiree mortality rates. We evaluate these assumptions at least annually.

The discount rate is used to determine the present value of future benefit payments at the
measurement date — October 31 for U.S. plans and September 30 for non-U.S plans. The discount
rate for U.S. plans was determined based on published rates for high quality corporate bonds. The
discount rate for non-U.S. plans was generally determined in a similar manner. Differences
between the expected future cash flows of our plans and the maturities of the high quality
corporate bonds are not expected to have a material impact on the selection of discount rates. In
recent years, decreasing interest rates, particularly outside the U.S., have increased our benefit
obligations and our net plan costs. These increases have been in large part offset by a declining
number of plan participants as a result of our various restructuring programs. The entire impact
of declining discount rates is not recognized immediately under current accounting standards. As
of October 31, 2005, delayed recognition of the impact of declining discount rates was the primary
factor in approximately $390 million in unrecognized actuarial losses for non-U.S. plans. These
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losses are being recognized over the expected average future service lives of plan participants —
ranging from 12 to 18 years depending on the plan.

The expected long-term return on plan assets is estimated using current and expected asset
allocations, as well as historical and expected returns. Qur estimate of expected long-term rates of
return has declined in recent years. Declining rate of return assumptions generally result in
increased pension expense. This trend has been offset by the impact of company contributions to
the plans and growth in plan assets resulting in increased expected returns on plan assets in 2003
through 2005. As of October 31, 2005, delayed recognition of better than expected investment
experience was a significant factor in $30 million of unrecognized actuarial gains for U.S. plans.
These gains will be recognized over approximately 12 years or the expected average future service
life for U.S. plan participants. A one percent change in the estimated long-term return on plan
assets for 2006 would result in a $6 million impact on U.S. pension expense and a $13 million
impact on non-U.S. pension expense.

We expect reduced pension and post-retirement expense in 2006 due to the sale of our
semiconductor products business and further restructuring. These events individually or in the
aggregate may trigger plan curtailments or settlements under SFAS No. 88, Employers’
Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits. We can not currently estimate this impact.

Valuation of long-lived assets. We performed our annual goodwill impairment analysis
in the fourth quarter of 2005. Based on our estimates of forecasted discounted cash flows and our
market capitalization at that time, we concluded that our goodwill was not impaired. We have also
assessed the recoverability of our long-lived assets, by determining whether the carrying value of
such assets will be recovered through undiscounted future cash flows. We incurred $26 million of
investment and restructuring asset impairment charges in 2005.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill and other intangibles is highly
subjective and requires significant judgment. We estimate expected future cash flows of our
various businesses, which operate in a number of markets and geographical regions. We then
determine the carrying value of these businesses. We exercise judgment in assigning and
allocating certain assets and liabilities to these businesses. We then compare the carrying value
including goodwill and other intangibles to the discounted future cash flows. If the total of future
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, we recognize an impairment loss based
on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. Estimates of the future
cash flows associated with the assets are critical to these assessments. Changes in these estimates
based on changed economic conditions or business strategies could result in material impairment
charges in future periods. We performed the required transitional impairment test upon our
adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, in the first quarter of 2003
and recorded a $268 million charge related to goodwill.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of long-lived assets such as our property,
plant and equipment is also highly subjective and requires significant judgment. In order to
estimate the fair value of long-lived assets, we typically make various assumptions about the
future prospects for the business that the asset relates to, consider market factors specific to that
business and estimate future cash flows to be generated by that business. Based on these
assumptions and estimates, we determine whether we need to take an impairment charge to
reduce the value of the asset stated on our balance sheet to reflect its estimated fair value.
Assumptions and estimates about future values and remaining useful lives are complex and often
subjective, They can be affected by a variety of factors, including external factors such as the real
estate market, industry and economic trends, and internal factors such as changes in our business



strategy and our internal forecasts. Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have
made in the past have been reasonable and appropriate, changes in assumptions and estimates
could materially impact our reported financial results.

Accounting for income taxes. Significant management judgment is required in
determining our provision for income taxes and in determining whether deferred tax assets will
be realized in full or in part. When it is more likely than not that all or some portion of specific
deferred tax assets such as net operating losses or foreign tax credit carryforwards will not be
realized, a valuation allowance must be established for the amount of the deferred tax assets that
cannot be realized. Realization is based on our ability to generate sufficient future taxable income.
During the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge to establish a valuation
allowance of $1.4 billion, which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax benefits recorded
during the first six months of 2003. This left an approximately $1.0 billion net tax provision
recorded within provision for taxes for 2003. The valuation allowance was determined in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109 which requires an assessment of both positive
and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax
assets are recoverable. Such assessment is required on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis.
Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S. and selected entities in other foreign jurisdictions in recent
years represented sufficient negative evidence, which made it difficult for positive evidence to
overcome under SFAS No. 109. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance was recorded in certain
entities of those selected jurisdictions. We intend to maintain a full valuation allowance until
sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of the valuation allowance. Profits or losses
incurred in the U.S. and selected entities in other jurisdictions affect the ongoing amount of the
valuation allowance. We expect that pre-tax income in fiscal 2006 will be recognized at a lower
rate because future income taxes in the U.S. and entities in other jurisdictions will be offset
against adjustments to the valuation allowance to effectively eliminate any tax expense or benefit
in those jurisdictions. Income taxes will continue to be recorded for various jurisdictions subject
to the need for valuation allowances in those jurisdictions.

We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on the
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, the cumulative amount of which is
approximately $355 million as of October 31, 2005, because we intend to reinvest such earnings
indefinitely. Should we decide to remit this income to the U.S. in a future period, our provision
for income taxes may increase materially in that period.

We are subject to ongoing tax examinations of our tax returns by the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities in various jurisdictions. We regularly assess the likelihood of
adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision
for income taxes.

Restructuring and Asset Impairment

Restructuring plans initiated in 2001, 2002 and 2003 (*‘Prior Plans”) are substantially
complete. In 2005, we initiated a new restructuring plan (“FY05 Plan’). With the FY05 Plan, we
intend to reduce infrastructure-related employment by about 1,300 jobs and reduce our annual
infrastructure costs by more than $450 million, with approximately $250 million savings from job
elimination and transfer to lower cost regions, approximately $100 million savings from
consolidations of facilities and $100 million reduced information technology (“IT”) spending. Of
the 1,300 infrastructure-related jobs, approximately 600 employees have been notified as of
October 31, 2005 and we expect another 700 employees will be notified in the fiscal year 2006.
The FY05 Plan also extends to job reductions within our business segments of approximately 900
people all of whom were notified as of October 31, 2005. These reductions will be concentrated in
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the semiconductor test solutions and electronic measurement businesses, with semiconductor test
solutions reductions focused in the U.S., Germany and Japan, and electronic measurement
reductions focused in the U.S. and the U.K. As of October 31, 2005, we have reduced our
workforce by approximately 16,900 people (approximately 16,300 people from Prior Plans and
approximately 600 people from the FY05 Plan) to approximately 21,000 employees, excluding our
former semiconductor products business employees.

We recorded restructuring and asset impairment charges of $123 million, $161 million and
$372 million for the fiscal years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Our accrual for future
restructuring expenses totaled $93 million as of October 31, 2005, and it encompasses the FY05
Plan and our remaining liability for consolidation of excess facilities from Prior Plans. Our plans
to consolidate excess facilities resulted in charges of $10 million in 2005 for lease termination fees
and losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements related to Prior Plans. Similar charges in 2004
and 2003 were $35 million and $37 million, respectively. We will continue to make lease payments
on some of this excess facility space over the next five years.

The restructuring accrual is recorded in other accrued liabilities and other long-term
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. For further details on our restructuring plans, see
Note 14, “Restructuring and Asset Impairment”, to our consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency

Our revenues, costs and expenses, and monetary assets and liabilities are exposed to changes
in foreign currency exchange rates as a result of our global operating and financing activities. We
hedge net cash flow and balance sheet exposures that are not denominated in the functional
currencies of our subsidiaries on a short term and anticipated basis. We do experience some
fluctuations within individual lines of the consolidated statement of operations and balance sheet
as our hedging program is not designed to offset the currency movements in each category of
revenues, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities. However, movements in exchange rates net of
our hedging activities had no material effect on our net income (loss) in the periods presented.

Indemnifications
Indemnifications to Hewlett-Packard

We have given multiple indemnities to Hewlett-Packard (“HP”) in connection with our
activities prior to our spin-off from HP for the businesses that constituted Agilent prior to the
spin-off. These indemnifications cover a variety of aspects of our business, including, but not
limited to, employee, tax, intellectual property and environmental matters. The agreements
containing these indemnifications have been previously disclosed as exhibits to our registration
statement on Form S-1 filed on August 16, 1999. In our opinion, the fair value of these
indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Officers and Directors

Our corporate by-laws require that we indemnify our officers and directors, as well as those
who act as directors and officers of other entities at our request, against expenses, judgments,
fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any
proceedings arising out of their services to Agilent. In addition, we have entered into separate
indemnification agreements with each director and each board-appointed officer of Agilent which
provide for indemnification of these directors and officers under similar circumstances and under
additional circumstances. The indemnification obligations are more fully described in the by-laws
and the indemnification agreements. We purchase insurance to cover claims or a portion of the
claims made against our directors and officers. Since a maximum obligation is not explicitly
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stated in our by-laws or in our indemnification agreements and will depend on the facts and
circumstances that arise out of any future claims, the overall maximum amount of the obligations
cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made payments related to these
obligations, and the fair value for these obligations is zero on the consolidated balance sheet as of
October 31, 2005.

Indemnifications to Avago

In connection with the sale of our semiconductor products business in December 2005, we
agreed to indemnify Avago, its affiliates and other related parties for certain liabilities that were
excluded from the sale such as pre-closing taxes and other specified items.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in our industry and as provided for in local law in the U.S. and other
jurisdictions, many of our standard contracts provide remedies to our customers and others with
whom we enter into contracts, such as defense, settlement, or payment of judgment for
intellectual property claims related to the use of our products. From time to time, we indemnify
customers, as well as our suppliers, contractors, lessors, lessees, companies that purchase our
businesses or assets and others with whom we enter into contracts, against combinations of loss,
expense, or liability arising from various triggering events related to the sale and the use of our
products and services, the use of their goods and services, the use of facilities and state of our
owned facilities, the state of the assets and businesses that we sell and other matters covered by
such contracts, usually up to a specified maximum amount. In addition, from time to time we also
provide protection to these parties against claims related to undiscovered liabilities, additional
product liability or environmental obligations. In our experience, claims made under such
indemnifications are rare and the associated estimated fair value of the liability is not material.

Results from Continuing Operations

For the fiscal year ended 2005, income from continuing operations was $141 million, an
increase of $14 million from $127 million in 2004 and almost a $2 billon improvement from the
$1,777 million loss incurred in 2003. The increase of $14 million in 2005 was primarily due to
tighter cost controls. The increase in income from 2003 to 2004 of approximately $1,904 million
was primarily due to approximately a $1 billion tax charge in 2003 relating to the establishment
of a valuation allowance in the U.S. and the U.K. Also contributing to 2004’s improved
performance over 2003 was growth in revenue of $692 million, improvement in gross margin of
6 percentage points, and a decline in operating expenses of $263 million year-over-year. Agilent
saw a 1 percentage point improvement in its operating margin in 2005 compared to 2004, despite
a revenue decrease of $21 million. This was due to controls over our operating expenses, the
continued move of manufacturing capacity to lower cost regions, and restructuring savings.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 % Change % Change
(in millions)
Orders. . ...... ..., $5,295 $5,019 $4,432 5% 13%
Net revenue:
Products .............. .. $4,207 $4281 $3,652 (2)% 17%
Services and other ... ............. 932 879 816 6% 8%
Total net revenue .................. $5,139 $5,160 $4,468 - 15%

Years Ended October 31, 54505 qver 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Ppts Change Ppts Change
% of total net revenue:
Products .................. ..... 82% 83% 82% €Y 1
Services and other . ... ............ 18% 17% 18% 1 @))
Total .......... .. . . ... .. . . . . .. 100% 100% 100% — -

Orders in 2005 were up by 5 percent year-over-year, with nearly all our businesses achieving
order growth. We experienced good growth in wireline communications test and solid demand in
our bio-analytical business. Orders in 2004 were up by 13 percent compared to 2003, with all
businesses growing except semiconductor test solutions, which saw a 19 percent decrease over the
prior year, primarily caused by our customers’ excess capacity and excess inventory that had built
up over the second half.

Net revenue in 2005 was flat compared to 2004. Growth in the bio-analytical and electronic
measurement businesses was offset by a cyclical softness that affected our semiconductor test
solutions business in the first half of 2005. Net revenue in 2004 increased by 15 percent over
2003. All of our businesses experienced an increase in revenue in 2004.

Services and other includes revenue generated from servicing our installed base of products,
warranty extensions and consulting. In 2005 and 2004, services and other revenue increased over
the prior year as our installed base of products increased and a change in standard warranty
from three years to one year drove a higher volume of extended warranty business.

Costs and Expenses

Years Ended October 31, 5405 gyer 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Change Change
Gross margin on products . ........... 52% 50% 43% 2 ppts 7 ppts
Gross margin on services and other. . ... 37% 35% 33% 2 ppts 2 ppts
Total gross margin.................. 49% 47% 41% 2 ppts 6 ppts
Operating margin. . . ................ 4% 3% (16)% 1 ppt 19 ppts
Research and development ........... $ 738 § 689 $ 771 7% (11)%
Selling, general and administrative .. ... $1603 $1,603 $1,784 - (10)%
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The following tables present the gross inventory charges and sales of previously reserved
inventory, respectively:

Gross Inventory Charges

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003

Bio-analytical measurement ................. $ 4 $ 3 $3
Electronic measurement.................... 40 13 12
Semiconductor test solutions ................ 25 3 2
Unallocated charges and other (1) ............ 15 = -
Total . . ... . $_8é $19 $17

Sales of Previously Reserved Inventory

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003

Bio-analytical measurement . ................ $1 $ 3 $ -
Electronic measurement . ................... 7 9 5
Semiconductor test solutions .. .............. _7 ___l _7
Total . . ... . $£ $_13_ $£

(1) Unallocated charges primarily relate to inventory write-downs for exited product lines, which
management has not reflected in segment results.

Total gross margin increased 2 percentage points from 2004 to 2005. This improvement was
the result of restructuring activities, material cost reductions and overall operational
improvements, including mix improvements. Total gross margin increased 6 percentage points
from 2003 to 2004.

Gross margin on both product and service increased 2 percentage points in 2005 compared to
2004. This is a reflection of our continued work on lowering our cost structure. We expect to
continue to experience the benefits of a more variable cost structure through use of contract
manufacturers. In addition, we will continue to reduce our own manufacturing costs by shifting
production to lower-cost regions. In 2004, gross margin on services and other increased
2 percentage points, and gross margin on products increased 7 percentage points over 2003, as a
reflection of lower cost structure, principally through our restructuring programs.

Operating margin increased 1 percentage point in 2005 compared to 2004, slightly lagging the
improvement achieved in gross margin, due to increased research and development expense. In
2004 operating margin increased 19 percentage points compared to 2003. This was primarily due
to savings from our restructuring efforts and a $128 million decrease in restructuring costs for
research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses in 2004 compared to
2003.

Our research and development efforts focus on potential new products and product
improvements covering a wide variety of technologies in communications, electronics and
bio-analytical measurement, none of which is individually significant to our operations. This
research and development is aimed at improving the more than 20,000 products already in
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production and on new product releases. Because of the large number of new and existing
products and research and development projects across all of our businesses and at Agilent
Laboratories, it is difficult to quantify the impact of any specific products or projects. We are
commniitted to bringing new products to the market and have focused our development efforts on
key strategic opportunities in order to align our business with available markets and position
ourselves to capture market share.

Income from operations in 2005 was $181 million, an increase of approximately $36 million
compared to 2004. The increase was primarily driven by a $60 million decrease in costs and
expenses due to the incremental benefits of our restructuring programs and discretionary
spending controls. Income from operations in 2004 was $145 million, an increase of
approximately $865 million from 2003. The increase was primarily due to a revenue increase of
$692 million, combined with a $159 million reduction in restructuring charges in 2004 compared
to 2003.

At October 31, 2005, our headcount, on a continuing operations basis, was approximately
20,750 compared to 21,200 in 2004 and 22,000 in 2003.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Years Ended October 31, 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 % Change % Change
(in millions)
Interest income . . ............... $ 72 $ 27 $ 26 167% 4%
Interest expense ................ @27 (36) (36) 25% -
Other income (expense), net . ... ... 28 33 34 15% 3%
Total other income (expense), net . $ 73 $ 24 $24 204% -

As discussed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, to our consolidated
financial statements, in 2005, we reclassified our equity earnings (and gain in 2005) from our
Lumileds joint venture from other income/(expense), net to a new caption below the provision for
income taxes. See Note 22, “Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Affiliate (including Gain) —
Lumileds’, to our consolidated financial statements. Prior periods’ amounts have also been
reclassified.

Other income (expense), net generally includes interest income, interest expense, rental
income, currency gain (loss) on balance sheet remeasurement and other miscellaneous items.
Other income (expense), net increased by $49 million in 2005 compared to 2004 due primarily to
an increase in interest income of $45 million derived principally from the investment of our
increased surplus cash balances in bank time deposits and other money market instruments and
higher interest rates. Other income (expense), net remained flat from 2003 to 2004.

Provision for Income Taxes from Continuing Operations

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions)
Provision for income taxes . ... .............. $155 $71 $1,090
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We have restated our historical consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2004, quarterly
financial data for the fourth quarter ended October 31, 2004, and selected financial data for fiscal
2004 (the “Restatement’). The determination to restate these consolidated financial statements
and selected financial data was made by our management in consultation with the Audit &
Finance Committee on January 13, 2006, as a result of our identification of an error related to the
accounting for income taxes. During the October 31, 2004 year-end close process, the Company
miscalculated and understated its estimate of U.S. jurisdictional loss. By correcting the error and
revising the estimate of U.S. loss, this resulted in the recognition of additional tax benefit
associated with the loss and a corresponding additional income tax expense associated with
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income pursuant to SFAS No. 109. This error was identified
through the operation of our internal control over financial reporting in 2005. The Restatement
decreases our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2004 by $20 million and increases net income
by $20 million, or $0.04 per diluted share.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA’") was signed into law.
The AJCA creates a temporary incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated income
earned abroad by providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for certain dividends
from controlled foreign corporations. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we distributed cash
from our foreign subsidiaries and will report an extraordinary dividend (as defined in the AJCA)
of $970 million and a related tax liability of approximately $48 million in our fiscal 2005 federal
income tax return. For fiscal 2005, $23 million of the $48 million is provided for in the
discontinued operations’ provision for income taxes, while the remaining is provided for in the
continuing operations’ provision for income taxes.

For the year ended October 31, 2005, we recorded an income tax provision of $155 million on
continuing operations as compared with an income tax provision of $71 million and
$1,090 million on continuing operations for the years ended October 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The current year-to-date provision was recorded for taxes on income generated in
jurisdictions other than the U.S. and other jurisdictions for which we have a valuation allowance.
During the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge to establish a valuation
allowance of $1.4 billion which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax benefits recorded during
the first six months of 2003, resulting in an approximate $1.0 billion net deferred tax provision
recorded within provision for taxes for 2003. The valuation allowance was determined in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109 which requires an assessment of both positive
and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax
assets are recoverable; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis.
Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S and entities in other jurisdictions in recent years
represented sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 to require a full valuation allowance
in these jurisdictions. We intend to maintain a full valuation allowance in these jurisdictions until
sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal of the valuation allowance.

For 2005, the annual effective tax rate was 52.3 percent on continuing operations. The 52.3
percent continuing operations tax rate reflects taxes in jurisdictions other than the U.S. and
entities in other jurisdictions in which income tax or benefit continues to be offset by adjustments
to the valuation allowance. The tax rate for continuing operations does not include the impact of
income from low-tax jurisdictions generated by our semiconductor products business which is
now reported within discontinued operations. Additionally, the AJCA repatriation tax caused an
8.1 percent increase in the 2005 effective tax rate as during 2005 we decided to repatriate
earnings on which we had not previously provided for U.S taxes. From time to time the company
undertakes certain employment, capital and other investment actions that subject the company’s
income to reduced tax rates. The annual effective tax rate may change over time as the amount or
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mix of income and taxes changes. Our effective tax rate is calculated using our projected annual
pre-tax income or loss and is affected by research and development tax credits, the expected level
of other tax benefits, the effects of business acquisitions and dispositions, the impact of changes
to the valuation allowance, changes in other comprehensive income, as well as changes in the mix
of income and losses outside the U.S. and entities in other jurisdictions having varying statutory
rates.

For 2004, the annual effective tax rate was 35.9 percent on continuing operations, and was
benefited by a valuation allowance release of $37 million. For 2003, the annual effective tax rate
was 158.6 percent on continuing operations due primarily to the charge for the valuation
allowance.

Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Affiliate (Including Gain) — Lumileds

Lumileds is a global joint venture between Agilent and Philips. Lumileds manufactures
high-power light emitting diodes and solid-state lighting solutions. Agilent’s ownership interest in
Lumileds was approximately 47 percent as of October 31, 2005. Our equity in the net income of
our unconsolidated affiliate for the three years ended October 31, 2005 was $34 million,
$29 million and $9 million. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we sold 1 percent of our
interest in Lumileds to Philips for a gain of $8 million. Agilent sold its interest in Lumileds on
November 28, 2005, see Note 24, “Subsequent Events’’, to our consolidated financial statements.

General Infrastructure and Shared Services

For Agilent overall, we have decreased our infrastructure costs primarily through
restructuring programs and cost controls. We have reduced the number of employees in our
workforce that provide support services such as finance, IT and workplace services and moved
some of our global shared services operations sites to lower cost regions. Compared to 2004,
incremental savings for infrastructure costs for 2005 associated with restructuring plans, IT data
center and networking costs, IT project investments and cost controls were approximately
$20 million. We passed through these savings to all our businesses according to usage of related
services. The general infrastructure and shared services functions ended 2005 with approximately
3,910 employees, a decrease of approximately 140 employees from one year ago and a decrease of
approximately 370 employees from two years ago. Over the past two years, general infrastructure
and shared services headcount has dropped approximately 570 in the U.S. and Europe but has
grown approximately 210 in Asia, primarily in India. We expect to continue to reduce
infrastructure costs, currently reported in continuing operations, as we divest our semiconductor
products business and spin-off our semiconductor test solutions business. Approximately 200
general infrastructure and shared services employees will be moving to our divested
semiconductor products business in 2006.

Segment Overview

Agilent is the world’s premier measurement company providing core bio-analytical and
electronic measurement solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical
analysis industries. We have three primary businesses: electronic measurement, bio-analytical
measurement, and semiconductor test solutions. In addition to the discussion below, also see
Note 23, “Segment Information”, to our consolidated financial statements.
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Electronic Measurement

Our electronic measurement business provides standard and customized solutions that are
used in the design, development, manufacture, installation, deployment and operation of
electronic equipment and systems and communications networks and services.

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 5405 oyer 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Change Change

(in millions)
Orders......... . $3,282 $3,180 $2,631 3% 21%
Net revenue from products ........... $2,758 $2,752 $2,291 - 20%
Net revenue from services and other . . .. 507 473 455 7% 4%
Total netreverwue .................. $3,265 $3,225 $2,746 1% 17%

Compared to 2004, electronic measurement experienced a 3 percent increase in orders. While
our wireless communications test orders grew only slightly from last year, we experienced
significant growth in our wireline communications test. General purpose test orders remained flat
year-over-year. The 21 percent increase in orders in 2004 compared to 2003 was related to strong
aerospace defense business, growth in the communications test market for consumer electronics
(DVD players, LCD TVs, cell phones) and expansion of the Asian handset manufacturing capacity.

Electronic measurement revenues were up 1 percent year-over-year in 2005. Communications
test makes up approximately 60 percent of the electronic measurement revenues, and wireless
test makes up approximately 85 percent of communications test. The communication test
revenues were up 2 percent year-over-year, with a 1 percent year-over-year increase in wireline
test and a 2 percent year-over-year increase in wireless test. This was mainly due to the strength
of our signal analyzers and signal generator-related products, telecom service provider network
integration and next-generation IP services. General purpose test revenues were flat
year-over-year. In 2004 segment revenues increased 17 percent compared to 2003, largely due to
the expansion of cell phone handset production in Asia.

Looking forward to 2006, we anticipate moderate revenue growth to be driven by
opportunities tied to the universal adoption of 3G, broadband access proliferation and our recent
oscilloscope market share gains.

Gross Margin and Operating Margin

The following table shows the electronic measurement business’s margins, expenses and
income from operations for 2005 versus 2004 and 2004 versus 2003.

Years Ended October 31, 9405 gver 2004 2004 over 2003

2006 2004 2003 Change Change
Total gross margin .................... 53%  51% 43% 2 ppts 8 ppts
Operating margin ..................... 11% 9% (12)% 2 ppts 21 ppts
Research and development . ............. $450 $426 $ 493 6% (14)%
Selling, general and administrative .. ...... $926 $940 $1,032 (1% (9%
Income (loss) from operations. ........... $360 $279 $ (336) 29% 183%

17

_‘_I_’
2
3]
c
<
£
75
L d
1Y
]
o
Q
(-3
w
3
£
c
<t




QOver the past three years, we have implemented cost reduction and restructuring plans to
help lower our cost structure. Our electronic measurement business ended 2005 with
approximately 11,460 employees, a decrease of approximately 430 employees from one year ago
and 1,200 employees from two years ago.

Gross margin for products and services increased 2 percentage points year-over-year in 2005.
This improvement was driven by restructuring activities, material cost reductions and overall
operational improvements, and was achieved despite a $27 million increase in inventory charges
in 2005. Gross margin for products and services increased 8 percentage points in 2004 compared
to 2003.

Operating margin increased 2 percentage points in 2005 compared to 2004, with research and
development expenses increasing slightly and selling, general and administrative expenses
decreasing slightly due to savings from restructuring activities and discretionary spending
controls. In 2004, operating margin increased 21 percentage points compared to 2003, with
operational expenses decreasing by $159 million as a result of restructuring savings and expense
reduction.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased in 2005 by $81 million compared to 2004 on a revenue
increase of $40 million. Restructuring through workforce reductions, reduction in our cost
structure and discretionary spending controls helped comparative operating results. The
$615 million improvement in income from operations in 2004 compared to 2003 was achieved
through strong revenue growth in combination with an 8 percentage point improvement in gross
margins and a $159 million reduction in research and development and selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Bio-analytical Measurement

Our bio-analytical measurement business provides application-focused solutions that include
instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify, quantify and
analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products. Our seven key product
categories include: microarrays, microfluidics, gas chromatography, liquid chromatography, mass
spectrometry, software and informatics, and related consumables, reagents and services. The
business achieved solid growth in 2005, with orders and revenue growing by 12 percent and
7 percent, respectively, compared to 2004, and operating income up 6 percent. All seven key
product categories contributed to the overall growth of the bio-analytical measurement segment.

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Change Change

(in millions)
Orders............ ... uvu.o.. ... $1,491 31,332 31,174 12% 13%
Net revenue from products ........... $1,096 $1,034 $ 915 6% 13%
Net revenue from services and other . . .. 325 299 271 9% 10%
Total net revenue .................. $1,421 $1,333 $1,186 7% 12%
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Bio-analytical measurement business orders and revenue continued to grow, achieving record
levels in 2005. Growth was achieved in all geographies, with the highest rates achieved in Asia
and Europe. In both 2004 and 2005, growth over the prior year was driven by demand for
replacement instrument systems and consumables in our large installed base in the U.S. and
Europe, increased U.S. government spending for homeland security, spending related to
environmental testing in Asia, and increased demand from generic drug manufacturers.

Looking forward to 2006, we anticipate order and revenue to grow from 2005 levels, with
strength across both our life science and chemical analysis businesses. We anticipate growth to be
driven by new products such as rapid resolution liquid chromatography, single quadrupole MS for
LC detection, LCMS triple quadrupole (“QQQ"), and LCMS quadrupole time-of-flight (“QTOF").

Gross Margin and Operating Margin

The following table shows the bio-analytical measurement business’s margins, expenses and
income from operations for 2005 versus 2004, and 2004 versus 2003.

Years Ended October 31,

2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Change Change
Total gross margin .............. 50% 48% 48% 2 ppts -
Operating margin ............... 14% 14% 12% - 2 ppts
Research and development ........ $136 $117 $112 16% 4%
Selling, general and administrative . . $377 $342 $318 10% 8%
Income from operations .......... $197 $186 $141 6% 32%

Gross margin from products and services increased 2 percentage points compared to same
period last year as a result of revenue growth, improved microarray production processes and
increased efficiencies in support delivery. Looking forward, we expect to continue this trend in
2006.
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Operating margin remained flat compared to the same period last year as we invested heavily
in research and development and had small headcount increases within selling, general and
administrative to accommodate growth.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased 6 percent in 2005 compared to 2004 due to increased
revenue. Operating margin remained flat in 2005 compared to 2004, at 14 percent. Excluding the
impact of acquisitions in 2005, operating margin increased 1 percentage point compared to 2004.

Semiconductor Test Solutions

Our semiconductor test solutions business provides test solutions that are used in the
manufacture of semiconductor devices. These solutions are complemented by consulting, service
and support offerings such as start-up assistance, application services and system calibration and
repair. Our semiconductor test solutions enable designers and manufacturers to shorten the
design-to-production cycle, lower manufacturing cost of test, confirm the functional quality of
their devices and of their manufacturing processes, and accelerate the high-volume delivery of
their products. As previously announced, we plan to spin off our semiconductor test solutions
business during 2006.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003
2005 2004 2003 Change Change
(in millions)
Orders ........... ... viie... $522 $507 $627 3% (19%
Net revenue from products ........ $353 $495 $448 (29)% 10 %
Net revenue from services and other . 100 107 90 (% 19 %
Total net revenue ............... $453 $602 $538 (25)% 12 %

We believe that the semiconductor test market has passed the bottom of a downturn that
began in the third quarter of 2004 and continued into the first half of 2005. Throughout the
second half of 2005, the semiconductor test market exhibited a recovery driven by increased
demand for flash memory used in cellular phones, cameras, portable music players and other
electronic devices, in addition to strong demand for non-memory chips in end-markets such as
wireless handsets, other consumer electronics and personal computers. This helped orders
increase by 3 percent in 2005 compared to 2004. In 2004, orders decreased 19 percent compared
to 2003 primarily due to a weak second half caused by excess customer inventory and delayed
customer purchases in anticipation of our next generation flash memory and SOC test systems.

In second half of 2005, we have seen increased sales of our new Pin Scale systems,
introduced in late 2004 as our next generation SOC test system. This system allows customers to
reduce their infrastructure costs and offers new test capabilities at higher testing speeds. The
acceptance attests to the benefits of our single platform strategy and to the ease of migration for
customers. This includes an expanding presence in very cost sensitive digital consumer
applications, including many systems for MP3, Digital TV and DVD parts. Because of the flexibility
and scalability of the Pin Scale platform, we are now addressing entirely new markets, from
cost-sensitive digital consumer applications to High Speed Memory test. Pin Scale products
comprised approximately 40 percent of the business in 2005, and are expected to rise in 2006 if
demand in end markets continues to be strong in the upcoming year.

Memory test systems, which represents approximately 27 percent of our semiconductor test
business, were driven throughout 2005 by strength in consumer products such as cell phones,
cameras and MP3 players. Large Independent Device Manufacturers (*1IDMs”) drove the majority
of the business for memory testing equipment as a result of the overall increase in Not And
(NAND) flash memory demand, with the remainder coming from smaller independent test houses.

Total net revenue in 2005 decreased 25 percent compared to 2004 primarily due to severe
weakness across our product portfolio in the first half of 2005. Total net revenue in 2004
increased 12 percent compared to 2003 due to SOC test market strength, but this was partially
offset by weakness in flash memory test. Services and other revenue decreased 7 percent in 2005
compared to 2004 and increased 19 percent in 2004 compared to 2003. It includes the sale of
support for hardware and software, servicing our installed base and the sale of services such as
training, application development and test consulting for new installations. Services and other
revenue tends to show lower volatility than hardware revenue since services are provided over
one year or more. Looking forward to fiscal year 2006, we are optimistic about revenue growth,
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Gross Margin and Operating Margin

The following table shows the semiconductor test business’s margins, expenses and income
from operations for 2005 versus 2004 and 2004 versus 2003.

Years Ended October 31, 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003

2005 2004 2003 Change Change
Total gross margin .............. 31 % 42% 44 % (11) ppts @) ppt
Operating (deficit) margin . . ....... 20)% 2% O% (22) ppts 3 ppts
Research and development ........ $101 $104 $ 98 3)% 6%
Selling, general and administrative ..  $131 $136 $145 @)% (6)%
(Loss) income from operations . . ... $91) $ 12 $ (6) (858)% 300%

Gross margin for products and services decreased 11 percentage points in 2005 from 2004
due to competitive pricing pressure and a $22 million inventory charge on the V4400 system and
other legacy product lines, partially offset by sales of previously reserved inventory. Gross margin
for products and services decreased 2 percentage points in 2004 compared to 2003 because of a
competitive pricing environment. On an absolute dollar basis, the cost of products and services
decreased 11 percent in 2005 compared to 2004 due to reduced volume and increased 17 percent
in 2004 compared to 2003 due to a higher volume of sales. Our semiconductor test business
continues to implement cost control programs as well as outsource production to contract
manufacturers, transferring manufacturing to low-cost regions and closely monitoring indirect and
direct material costs.

The operating margin decreased 22 percentage points in 2005 compared to 2004. This was
mainly due to the decrease in gross margins referenced above and an increase in research and
development as a percentage of revenue in preparation for the complete roll-over of the STE
product line in addition to higher field selling costs to help customers migrate to new products. In
2004, the operating margin increased 3 percentage points compared to 2003, with a reduction in
selling, general and administrative expenses partially offset by higher research and development
spending.

On an absolute dollar basis, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased
4 percentage points in 2005 compared to 2004 and decreased 6 percentage points in 2004
compared to 2003. The decreases reflect the implementation of initiatives to control discretionary
spending.

(Loss) Income from Operations

Throughout 2004 we saw improvements in revenue and income from operations followed by a
market downturn into the first half of 2005, with a recovery in the second half of 2005. Our
semiconductor test business exits the current year with strong orders and a competitive line of
products. In addition, utilization rates for our 93K systems finished the year at above average
industry rates.

Discontinued Operations

In August 2005, the Board of Directors of Agilent approved the divestiture of our
semiconductor products business. We subsequently signed an Asset Purchase Agreement with
Avago providing for the sale of our semiconductor products business for approximately
$2.66 billion. We have reflected the semiconductor products business as a discontinued operation
for all periods presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. On December 1, 2005, we
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completed the sale of our semiconductor products business to Avago. For further information, see
Note 24, “Subsequent Events”, to our consolidated financial statements. In 2005, our costs directly
associated with this transaction were approximately $32 million and are included in the
discontinued operation results below.

Discontinued operations results for the past three years are summarized in the table below
and include the results of the camera module business, which was sold in February 2005. As
discussed in the Restatement — Explanatory Note, we have restated our 2004 results of operations
to correct for an error in the provision for income taxes. This restatement also affected our net
results of discontinued operations and is discussed in Note 1A, “Restatement of 2004
Consolidated Financial Statements’’, to our consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions)
NetTEVENUE . . v v i ittt e et $1,796 $2,021 $1,588
Costs and eXpPenses .. .. ...ttt 1,570 1,779 1,694
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ........ 226 242 (6)
Otherincome, net. ... .. ... ...t enennn. 6 - 3
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before
BAKES o v v et e e e 232 242 3
Provisionfortaxes ............ ... .. 46 - 10
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ........ $ 186 $ 242 $ (13)

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our financial position remained strong at October 31, 2005, with cash and cash equivalents of
$2,226 million as compared to $2,315 million at October 31, 2004.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

We generated cash from continuing operations of $643 million in 2005 compared to
$432 million in 2004. We spent $110 million on restructuring activities in 2005, primarily in the
form of severance payments, compared to $138 million in 2004,

In 2005, accounts receivable generated cash of $29 million versus cash generated of
$117 million in 2004. Days sales outstanding as of October 31, 2005 was 53 days as compared to
56 days as of October 31, 2004. While revenue remained flat, the decline in days sales outstanding
reflects the continuing improvement in receivables management. In 2005, accounts payable
generated cash of $21 million versus cash generated of $47 million in 2004. Inventory generated
cash of $2 million in 2005 compared to $10 million used in 2004. Inventory days on hand also
improved as of the end of 2005 at 101 days compared to 109 days as of the end of 2004.

In 2005, we contributed $41 million to fund our U.S. defined benefit plan, compared to
$63 million in 2004. In 2005, we contributed $36 million to fund our international defined benefits
plans, compared to $83 million in 2004. In 2005, total pension plan contributions were
$77 million, or 47 percent less than in 2004. In 2006, we expect funding requirements for our
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various benefit plans to decrease slightly to a total of approximately $75 million. OQur annual
contributions are highly dependent on the relative performance of our assets versus our projected
liabilities, among other factors. As the value of our assets increases relative to our future
projected obligations we will make smaller contributions to maintain our funded status. In 2005,
we recorded an additional minimum pension liability for $170 million as several of our non-U.S.
defined benefit retirement plans had accumulated benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of
plan assets. The establishment of the additional minimum liability also resulted in a net long term
deferred tax asset for $55 million of which $34 million was offset by a valuation allowance.

In 2005, as in 2004, we recorded no goodwill amortization in accordance with SFAS No. 142.
Depreciation and amortization decreased from $218 million in 2004 to $186 million in 2005
reflecting the reduced acquisitions of property plant and equipment over the past few years and
the full amortization of other intangibles relating to business combinations completed in earlier
years such as the Objective Systems Integration acquisition in 2001. We paid income taxes
amounting to $75 million in 2005, as compared to $149 million in 2004.

Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations, which is not included
above, was $256 million in 2005 as compared to $238 million in 2004.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations for 2005 was $173 million
compared to $82 million in 2004. Investments in property, plant and equipment increased by
$55 million to $139 million in 2005 compared to 2004. We also used $64 million for acquisitions
of related businesses as compared to $18 million in 2004. Cash provided by divestitures was
$8 million in 2005.

Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations was $27 million in 2005 as
compared to cash used of $32 million in 2004.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations in 2005 was $780 million
compared to cash generation of $138 million in 2004. We completed the optional redemption of all
the 3 percent senior convertible debentures due 2021 in the fourth quarter of 2005. The aggregate
outstanding principal amount was approximately $1.15 billion. In lieu of cash redemption, holders
of approximately $466 million aggregate principal amount of the debentures elected to convert
their holdings into approximately 14.5 million shares of Agilent common stock. The remaining
$684 million of outstanding debentures were retired for cash, and as a result Agilent no longer
has any of the debentures outstanding. Loss on redemption of convertible debt amounted to
$7 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase
program of up to $4.466 billion of our common stock. Under the program, during the fourth
quarter of 2005, we repurchased 8.9 million shares for $290 million. Repurchased shares and
related costs have been accounted for as treasury shares using the cost method. Also, subsequent
to our fiscal year end, we initiated a self-tender offer for an additional 73 million of our shares
under the repurchase program with the right to repurchase up to an additional 2 percent of our
outstanding shares as of October 31, 2005. Subsequent to year end, in December 2005, the tender
offer expired and we agreed to accept for payment 83 million shares at a purchase price of $36
per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $3 billion. To date we have repurchased
approximately 92 million shares for $3.3 billion which leaves approximately $1.2 billion remaining

23

_l/l
©
(3]
=
«Q
£
[
o
S
o
o
Q
o
]
3
c
o
<<




authorized under our stock repurchase program. The remaining repurchases may be affected in a
number of ways, including open market purchases, block trades, additional self-tender offers,
accelerated share repurchase transactions and other means. The program is expected to be
completed by the end of fiscal year 2007.

We funded the $3.3 billion in total repurchases under our authorized stock repurchase
program with cash on hand and from the proceeds of the sale of our semiconductor products
business and our Lumileds joint venture. We also drew down $700 million on a $1 billion senior
secured term borrowing facility. We entered into the facility in December 2005 and it matures no
later than April 2006. The term facility allows us to borrow at an interest rate equal to one-month
LIBOR plus 30 basis points per annum, or for shorter LIBOR periods if we and the lenders so
agree. Prior to its final maturity, we expect to replace the term facility with permanent financing.
As a condition of the term facility, we will segregate investments equal to 1056.25 percent of the
principal borrowed as restricted assets on our balance sheet. We plan to use the remainder of the
term facility proceeds, as well as any additional proceeds from the permanent financing expected
in the second quarter of 2006, to fund the remaining $1.2 billion of repurchases under our
authorized stock repurchase program.

We believe that the cash that we expect to be generated by our operating activities, together
with our existing cash and short-term investments, will be sufficient to support our operations,
including our working capital, capital expenditure and investment needs, for the coming year,
Additionally, we believe this cash together with our current and future borrowing capabilities are
sufficient to fund the anticipated repurchase of the remaining shares under the stock repurchase
program.

In December 2005, we completed the divestiture of our semiconductor products business to
Avago for approximately $2.6 billion in proceeds. The divestiture includes approximately 6,500
regular employees and operations in Asia, the U.S. and Europe. In November 2005, we also
completed the sale of our stake in Lumileds Lighting International B.V. (*Lumileds’) to Royal
Philips Electronics for approximately $949 million, plus repayment of approximately $51 million
of outstanding principal debt and accrued interest from Lumileds.

Other

We have contractual commitments for non-cancelable operating leases. See Note 19,
“Commitments’’, to our consolidated financial statements for further information on our
non-cancelable operating leases.

Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which are based on normal ongoing
operations of our business and some of which arise from fluctuations related to global economics
and markets. Our cash balances are generated and held in many locations throughout the world.
Local government regulations may restrict our ability to move cash balances to meet cash needs
under certain circumstances. We do not currently expect such regulations and restrictions to
impact our ability to pay vendors and conduct operations throughout our global organization.

On April 13, 2005, Standard & Poor’s Rating Services (*S&P’") raised its corporate credit and
senior unsecured debt ratings of Agilent to “BB+" from “BB”, revising their rating outlook to
“stable’” from ‘‘positive”. On August 15, 2005, S&P raised its rating outlook on Agilent to
“positive”, but left the company’s corporate credit and senior unsecured debt ratings unchanged.
On November 23, 2005, Moody's Investors Service (“Moody’s”) affirmed their credit ratings of
Agilent, leaving unchanged the senior implied debt rating of “Ba2’” and the speculative grade
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liquidity rating of “SGL-1". Moody’s ‘“stable” rating outlook for the company was also left
unchanged.

Contractual Commitments

Our cash flows from operations are dependent on a number of factors, including fluctuations
in our operating results, accounts receivable collections, inventory management, and the timing of
tax and other payments. As a result, the impact of contractual obligations on our liquidity and
capital resources in future periods should be analyzed in conjunction with such factors.

The following table summarizes our total contractual obligations at October 31, 2005,
including those related to discontinued operations and excludes amounts recorded in our
consolidated balance sheet (in millions):

Less than one year One to three years Three to five years More than five years

Operating leases . . ........ $ 90 $124 $55 $30
Commitments to contract
manufacturers and

suppliers .. ............ 585 — - -
Other purchase commitments 82 105 18 2
Retirement plans ......... 75 - = =
Total ................. $832 $229 $73 $32

Operating leases. Commitments under operating leases relate primarily to leasehold
property. Commitments under leases relating to discontinued operations totaled $23 million, split
as follows: $6 million due within one year; $11 million due in one to three years; $5 million due
in three to five years and $1 million due in five years or more.

Commitments to contract manufacturers and suppliers. We purchase components from a
variety of suppliers and use several contract manufacturers to provide manufacturing services for
our products. During the normal course of business, we issue purchase orders with estimates of
our requirements several months ahead of the delivery dates. However, our agreements with these
suppliers usually allow us the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust our requirements based on
our business needs prior to firm orders being placed. Typically purchase orders outstanding with
delivery dates within 30 days are non-cancelable. Therefore, only approximately 20 percent of our
reported purchase commitments arising from these agreements are firm, non-cancelable, and
unconditional commitments. We expect to fulfill all purchase commitments for inventory within
one year. Commitments to contract manufacturers and suppliers relating to our discontinued
operations were $166 million, and of these approximately 34 percent were firm, non-cancelable,
and unconditional commitments.

In addition to the above, we record a liability for firm, non-cancelable, and unconditional
purchase commitments for quantities in excess of our future demand forecasts consistent with our
policy relating to excess inventory. As of October 31, 2005, the liability for our firm,
non-cancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments was $27 million, compared with
$16 million as of October 31, 2004. These amounts are included in other accrued liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet.
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Other purchase commitments. These relate primarily to contracts with professional services
suppliers. Purchase commitments are typically cancelable within a 90-day period without
significant penalties.

Retirement plans. Retirement plan funding includes the expected tax-deductible
contribution planned for 2006. Funding projections beyond the current year are not practical to
estimate due to the rules affecting tax deductible contributions and the impact from asset
performance and interest rates.

We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements as of October 31, 2005 or October 31,
2004.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risks inherent in our sales commitments,
anticipated sales, and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of our subsidiaries. We hedge future cash flows denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency using sales forecasts up to twelve months in advance. Our exposure to
exchange rate risks is managed on an enterprise-wide basis. This strategy utilizes derivative
financial instruments, including option and forward contracts, to hedge certain foreign currency
exposures with the intent of offsetting gains and losses that occur on the underlying exposures
with gains and losses on the derivative contracts hedging them. We do not currently and do not
intend to utilize derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Our operations generate non-functional currency cash flows such as revenues, third party
vendor payments and inter-company payments. In anticipation of these foreign currency cash
flows and in view of volatility of the currency market, we enter into such foreign exchange
contracts as are described above to manage our currency risk. Approximately 70 percent of our
revenues in 2005, 70 percent of our revenues in 2004 and 69 percent of our revenues in 2003
were generated in U.S. dollars.

We performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10 percent adverse movement in
foreign exchange rates to the hedging contracts and the underlying exposures described above. As
of October 31, 2005 and October 31, 2004, the analysis indicated that these hypothetical market

movements would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Agilent Technologies, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of Agilent Technologies, Inc.’s 2005 consolidated
financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2005 and
audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our
audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Agilent Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries at October 31,
2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended October 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated
its 2004 financial statements.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” as
of November 1, 2002.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2005 based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2005, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control
over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes
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obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s

assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and

performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, California
January 16, 2006
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions, except per
share data)
Net revenue:
Products . . ..o e e e e e $4,207 $4,281 $ 3,652
Servicesand other . ... ......... .. 932 879 816
Total NEL TEVENUE . . . . .. o ittt e e et et e 5,139 5,160 4,468
Costs and expenses:
Costof products . . ... ... . i e 2,034 2,184 2,123
Costof servicesand other ......... ... . ... .. .. ... . ... 583 539 510
Total COSES . it e e e e 2,617 2,723 2,633
Research and development . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... 738 689 771
Selling, general and administrative . .. ... ................ .. ... 1,603 1,603 1,784
Total costs and eXPenses . . . . .. it i ittt e 4958 5,015 5,188
Income (loss) from operations . ... ..... ..t 181 145 (720)
Other income (eXpense), Net . . . . ...ttt i it e et e e 73 24 24
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes and equity

INCOIME . . . it e e e e e e e e e e 254 169 (696)
Provision for iNCOmMe taxes . . . . . . oot v ittt it e e e e 155 71 1,090
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliate (including gain) —

Lumileds . ... .. e 42 29 9
Income (loss) from continuing operations ....................... 141 127  (L,777)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (net of tax expense of $46

million in 2005, zero million in 2004, and $10 million in 2003) .. . ... 186 242 (13
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes......... 327 369  (1,790)
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 . ........ ... ... .. ... - - (268)
Netincome (10SS) . . .o vt v ittt it e e e e e $ 327 $§ 369 $(2,058)
Net income (loss) per share — Basic:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . ... ................. $ 029 $ 026 $ (3.76)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net................. 0.37 0.50 (0.03)

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 .. ... ............... - - (0.56)

Net income (loss) per share — Basic . ....................... $ 066 $ 0.76 $ (4.35)
Net income (loss) per share — Diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. .................. $ 028 $ 026 $ (3.76)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net................. 0.37 0.49 (0.03)

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 .. .. ................ - — (0.56)

Net income (loss) per share — Diluted .. ..................... $ 065 $ 0.75 $ (4.35)
Weighted average shares used in computing net income (loss) per share:

Basic ... e e 494 483 473

Diluted . . . ... e e 500 490 473

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

October 31,
2005 2004
(Restated)

(in millions, except
par value and

share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . .. ...... ... ... ... . . $ 2,226 $ 2315
Short term investments . . . .. . .. ... it e e 25 -
Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments ................. 2,251 2,315
Accounts receivable, net . . ... .. e e e e e e 753 788
Inventory . . . e e e e 722 809
Other current assets . . ... ... ...ttt e e e 298 266
Current assets of discontinued operations .. .......................... 423 485
Total current assets . . .. ... ... e e 4,447 4,663
Property, plant and equipment, net. . .. ... .. .. . 873 984
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net .............................. 362 345 "
Other assets . . . ... ... e e e 650 735 -
Non-current assets of discontinued operations. ... ....................... 419 417 g
TOLAL ASSEES « « « o v v v et e e e e e e e e $6751 $ 7144 e
(S
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY =
Current liabilities: 2
Accounts payable . . ... ... e 3 344 $§ 306 x
Employee compensation and benefits . . . .. ....... ... ... .. . ... o .. 542 522 ©
Deferred revenue . . ... ... .. ...t e e e e 247 227 2
Income and other taxes payable. . ... ....... .. .. . . .. . ... . 474 338 2
Other accrued liabilities .. ... ... ... ... . . . . . . . 179 208
Current liabilities of discontinued operations . . ... ..................... 150 171
Total current liabilities. . . . . ... .. .. . . e 1,936 1,772
Senior convertible debentures. . . .. ... ... . e - 1,150
Retirement and post-retirement benefits . ... ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 383 303
Other long-term liabilities . . . .. . ... .. .. . 351 350
Total liabilities .. ... ... . e e e 2,670 3,575
Commitments and contingencies . . . ......... ... .. .. .. e - -
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 125 million shares authorized; none issued
andoutstanding. . . . . ... .. . - —
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 2 billion shares authorized; 512 million shares
at October 31, 2005 and 487 million shares at October 31, 2004 issued and
outstanding . . . .. ... e e e e e 5 5
Treasury stock at cost; 9 million shares at October 31,2005 .. ............. (290) -
Additional paid-in-capital . ... ... ... ... 5,878 5,195
Accumulated deficit .. ... ... ... . . e (1,463) (1,790)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ....................... 49 159
Total stockholders’ equity .. ...... ... .. .. . . . i, 4,081 3,569
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... ......................... $6,751 $ 7,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome (10SS) . . . . . i i it e e e e
Less: income (loss) from discontinued operations .. ......................

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. ...... ... ... .. ... ... . ...

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .. ... ......... ... ... . . . o oo,
Deferred taxes . . . . . . . . .. L e
Excess and obsolete inventory-related charges . . . .. ... ... ..............
Non-cash restructuring and asset impairmentcharges . . . . .......... ... ...
Retirement plans curtailment loss . . . . ... ... ... ... ... o
Net gainon saleof investments . . . .. . ... .. ... ... .. ... . ...
Undistributed equity in net income of Lumileds (including gain) . . . . ... ... ...
Net gain on sale of assets and divestitures .. .........................
Stock-based compensation . . . ... .. L e e
O heT . . o e e
Adoption of SFAS No. 142 . . . . . ... . e

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable . . . . .. ... L e
Inventory . . . . . . .. e
Accounts payable . .. .. ... e e
Employee compensation and benefits . .. ... ... ... ... 0 0 oL
Income and other taxes payable . . . . ... ... ... .. ... oL
Other current assets and liabilities . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .....
Other long-term assets and liabilities . . . .. .......... ... ..... ... ...

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of continuing operations . . .
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations . ... ...

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . .. .. ............

Cash flows from investing activities:

Years Ended October 31,

Investments in property, plant and equipment . ... ........ ... . ... ... ...
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment . ... ... .. ...........
Investments in equity securities . . . . . . . ... L L L
Proceeds from the sale of investments . . . . ... ............... .. ... ...
Proceeds from divestitures . . .. ... ... ... ... e
Increase in restricted cash . . .. . ... .. ... .
Payment of loanreceivable . . .. ... ... .. .. ... o
Proceeds (purchases) of short-term investments, net . .. ....................
Acquisitions of businesses and intangible assets, net of cash acquired . . . . .. ... ...

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations . ... ..... . ...
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations ...........

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . .. ... . ... ... ... ... .. ..

Cash flows from financing activities:
Treasury stock repurchases . . . . . . . ..« . i e
Redemption of convertible debentures, net. . . . ... ......... ... .. .. ...,
Issuance of common stock under employee stockplans .. ...................
Net payments (borrowings) related to notes payable and short-term borrowings . . . . .

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of continuing operations . . .

Effect of exchange rate movements . . .. . ... . .. . .. it e e

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. .....................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear . . . ... .............. ... .. ..

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions)

$ 327 $ 369 $(2,058)
186 242 13
141 127 (2,045)
186 218 279
(12) (53) 1,071
84 19 17
26 34 46
- - 5
(8) - -
(42) (29) ®
(18) - &)
9 7 6

8 - -

- - 268
29 117 @
2 (10) 112
21 a7 25
17 28 (18)
122 (50) (63)
®) (40) ®)
83 17 (89)
643 432 (409)
256 238 251
899 870 (158)
(139) (84) (171)
54 34 2
13) (14 €))]
22 - -
8 - —
(22) - -
6 - -
(25) - -
(64) (18) -
(173) (82) (173)
@n (32) (30)
(200) (114) (203)
(290) - -
(684) - -
198 137 106
(4) 1 (2)
(780) 138 104
(8) 14 20
(89) 708 (237)
2,315 1,607 1,844
$2,226 $2,315 $ 1,607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Treasury Stock Accumulated

Number Additional Additional Other
of Par Paid-in Number of Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Value Capital Shares Capital Deficit Income/(Loss) Total

(in millions, except number of shares in thousands)

Balance as of October 31, 2002 . . . . .. 467,024 $5 $4,872 - $ - $ (10D $(149) $4,627
Components of comprehensive loss:
Netloss . .................. - - - - - (2,058) - (2,058)
Change in unrealized gain on
investment . ... ............ - - - - - - 3 3
Change in foreign currency
translation . . .. ............ - - - - - - 50 50
Change in minimum pension liability . - - - - - — 92 92
Deferred taxes related to items of
other comprehensive income . . . . . - - - - - - 2) 2)
Total comprehensive loss . . . .. .. (1,915)
Shares issued for eraployee benefit
plans and other .. ............ 9,125 - 112 - - - - 112
Balance as of October 31, 2003 . . . ... 476,149 5 4,984 - - (2,159) (6) 2,824
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income (Restated) . . ... ... .. - - - — - 369 - 369
Change in unrealized gain on n
investment . . .............. - - - - - - 5 5 R
Change in foreign currency ':-:’
translation .. ... .. ......... - — - - - - 103 103 1]
Change in unrealized gain on £
derivative instruments . . . . ... .. - - - - - - 2 2 L:
Change in minimum pension liability . - - — - - - 132 132 S
Deferred taxes, primarily related to a
minimum pension liability &
(Restated) ... ............. - - - - - - (70 an -
Total comprehensive income . . . . . 534 g
Shares issued for employee benefit é
plans and other .. ............ 9,920 - 193 - - - - 193
Issuance of common stock for an
acquisition . . ... ... .. L. 772 — 18 - - - - 18
Balance as of October 31, 2004
(Restated) . . . .. ............. 486,841 5 5,195 - - (1,790) 159 3,569
Components of comprehensive income:
Netincome ................. - - - - - 327 - 327
Change in unrealized gain on
investments . .............. — - — — - - 16 16
Change in unrealized gain on
derivative instruments . . . . . .. .. - - - - - - 19 19
Change in foreign currency
translation . . ... ........... - - - - - - (83) 83)
Change in minimum pension liability . - - — - - - (169) (169)
Deferred taxes, primarily related to
minimum pensjon liability . ... .. - - - - - - 9 9
Total comprehensive income . . . . . 119
Shares issued for employee benefit
plansand other . .. ........... 11,165 - 198 - - - - 198
Repurchase of common stock . . ... .. - — - (8,877) (290) - - (290)
Other stock based compensation
arrangements . . . .. ... ... ... - - 18 - - - - 18
Shares issued for convertible debt . . . . 14,471 - 467 - - - - 467
Balance as of October 31, 2005 . . . . .. 512,477 $5 $5,878 (8,877) $(290) $(1,463) $ (49 $4,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Overview

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (*we”, “Agilent” or the “company’’), incorporated in Delaware in
May 1999, is a measurement company, providing core bio-analytical and electronic measurement
solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis industries. Prior
to our initial public offering of 16 percent of our stock in November 1999, we were a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hewlett-Packard Company (“HP”’). HP distributed the remaining 84 percent
of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in the form of a stock dividend.

In August 2005, the Board of Directors approved the divestiture of our semiconductor
products business. The results of our semiconductor products business is presented as a
discontinued operation for all periods in the consolidated financial statements included herein.
See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations’’.

Our fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our
fiscal year.

1A. Restatement of 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements

We have restated our historical consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2004, quarterly
financial data for the fourth quarter ended October 31, 2004, and selected financial data for fiscal
2004 (the “Restatement’). The determination to restate these consolidated financial statements
and selected financial data was made by our management in consultation with the Audit &
Finance Committee on January 13, 2006, as a result of our identification of an error related to the
accounting for income taxes. During the October 31, 2004 year-end close process, the Company
miscalculated and understated its estimate of U.S. jurisdictional loss. By correcting the error and
revising the estimate of U.S. loss, this resulted in the recognition of additional tax benefit
associated with the loss and a corresponding additional income tax expense associated with
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (**SFAS No. 109’’). This error was identified
through the operation of our internal control over financial reporting in 2005. The Restatement
decreases our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2004 by $20 million and increases net income
by $20 million, or $0.04 per diluted share.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ (Continued)

The following tables present the effects of our Restatement on our previously consolidated
financial statements for fiscal 2004 and the affected quarter after giving effect to the reporting of
our discontinued operations as discussed in Note 4, “Discontinued Operations” and also after
reclassifying equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliate, Lumileds, in our consolidated
financial statements:

Reclassification
As for 2005 As Restated
Previously As Discontinued with Discontinued
Reported Adjustment Restated Operations/Other Operations

(in millions, except per share amounts)
Consolidated Statement of
Operations Data for the Year
Ended October 31, 2004:

Income from continuing operations
before taxes and equity income .. $ 440 $ - $ 440 $27TDH $ 169
Provision for income taxes ....... $ 91 $ (20) 71 $ - $ 7

Equity in net income of
unconsolidated affiliate —

&

Lumileds .................. $ - 3 - $ - $ 29 $ 29
Income from continuing operations . § 349 $ 20 $ 369 $(242) $ 127
Income from discontinued

operations, net . ............. $ - $ - $ - $ 242 $ 242
Netincome .................. $ 349 $ 20 $ 369 $ - $ 369
Net income per share — Basic
Income from continuing operations . $ 0.72 $0.04 $ 0.76 $ 026
Income from discontinued

operations, net . ............. $ - $ - $ - $ 050

Net income per share — Basic. ... $ 0.72 $0.04 $ 0.76 $ 0.76
Net income per share — Diluted
Income from continuing operations . $ 0.71 $30.04 $ 075 $ 0.26
Income from discontinued

operations, net . ............. $ - $ - $ - $ 049

Net income per share — Diluted .. $ 0.71 $0.04 $ 075 $ 075

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
as of October 31, 2004:

Accumulated comprehensive income . $ 179 $ (20) $ 159 $ 159
Accumulated deficit . ... ... .. $(1,810) $ 20 $(1,790) $(1,790)
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Three months ended October 31, 2004 (Unaudited)

Reclassification
As for 2005 As Restated
Previously As Discontinued with Discontinued
Reported Adjustment Restated Operations/Other Operations

Condensed Consolidated Statement

of Operations Data:
Income from operations ......... $ 89 $ - $ 89 $ (12) $ 77
Income from continuing operations . $ 74 $ 20 $ 94 $ (36) $ 58
Income from discontinued

operations, net . . ............ $ - $ - $ - $ 36 $ 36
Netinecome .................. $ 74 $ 20 $ 94 3 - $ 94
Net income per share — Basic
Income from continuing operations . $0.15 $0.04 $0.19 $(0.07) $0.12
Income from discontinued

operations, net .. ............ 3 - $ - $ - $ 0.07 $0.07

Net income per share — Basic. . . . 30.15 $0.04 $0.19 $ - $0.19
Net income per share — Diluted
Income from continuing operations . $0.15 $0.04 $0.19 $(0.07) $0.12
Income from discontinued

operations, net . . ............ $ - 8 - $ - $0.07 $0.07

Net income per share — Diluted . . $0.15 $0.04 $0.19 5 - $0.19

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation. The accompanying financial data has been prepared by us pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™).

Reclassifications. Amounts in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended October 31, 2004 and October 31, 2003 were reclassified to conform to the presentation
used in 2005. See Notes 4 and 22, for discussion relating to these reclassifications, and Note 5
related to revised classification.

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the company and our wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Partially owned, non-controlled equity affiliates
are accounted for under the equity method.

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S, requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions
believed to be reasonable. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions that may impact the company in the future, actual results may be
different from the estimates. Our critical accounting policies are those that affect our financial
statements materially and involve difficult, subjective or complex judgments by management.
Those policies are revenue recognition, restructuring and asset impairment charges, stock-based
compensation, inventory valuation, retirement and post-retirement plan assumptions, valuation of
long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Revenue recognition. We enter into agreements to sell products (hardware and/or software),
services and other arrangements (multiple element arrangements) that include combinations of
products and services.

We recognize revenue, net of trade discounts and allowances, provided that (1) persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has occurred, (3) the price is fixed or
determinable and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is considered to have occurred
when title and risk of loss have transferred to the customer, for products, or when the service has
been provided. We consider the price to be fixed or determinable when the price is not subject to
refund or adjustments. We consider arrangements with extended payment terms not to be fixed or
determinable, and accordingly we defer revenue until amounts become due. At the time of the
transaction, we evaluate the creditworthiness of our customers to determine the appropriate
timing of revenue recognition.

Product revenue. Our product revenue is generated predominantly from the sales of various
types of test equipment. Software is embedded in many of our test equipment products, but the
software component is generally considered to be incidental. Product revenue, including sales to
resellers and distributors, is reduced for estimated returns, when appropriate. For sales or
arrangements that include customer-specified acceptance criteria, including those where
acceptance is required upon achievement of performance milestones, revenue is recognized after
the acceptance criteria have been met. For products that include installation, if the installation
meets the criteria to be considered a separate element, product revenue is recognized upon
delivery, and recognition of installation revenue is delayed until the installation is complete.
Otherwise, neither the product nor the installation revenue is recognized until the installation is
complete.
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Where software is licensed separately, revenue is recognized when the software is delivered
and title and risk of loss have been transferred to the customer or, in the case of electronic
delivery of software, when the customer is given access to the licensed software programs. We
also evaluate whether collection of the receivable is probable, the fee is fixed or determinable and
whether any other undelivered elements of the arrangement exist on which a portion of the total
fee would be allocated based on vendor-specific objective evidence. Revenue from software
licensing was not material for all periods presented.

Service revenue. Revenue from services includes extended warranty, customer support,
consulting, training and education. Service revenue is deferred and recognized over the
contractual period or as services are rendered and accepted by the customer. For example,
customer support contracts are recognized ratably over the contractual period, while training
revenue is recognized as the training is provided to the customer. In addition the four revenue
recognition criteria described above must be met before service revenue is recognized.

Multiple element arrangements. We use objective evidence of fair value to allocate revenue
to elements in multiple element arrangements and recognize revenue when the criteria for
revenue recognition have been met for each element. If the criteria are not met, then revenue is
deferred until such criteria are met or until the period(s) over which the last undelivered element
is delivered. In the absence of objective evidence of fair value of a delivered element, we allocate
revenue to the fair value of the undelivered elements and the residual revenue to the delivered
elements. The price charged when an element is sold separately generally determines fair value.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Countinued)

Deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is primarily comprised of advanced billing and
customer deposits for service, support and maintenance agreements.

Accounts recetvable, net. Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount
and do not bear interest. Such accounts receivable has been reduced by an allowance for doubtful
accounts, which is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing
accounts receivable. We determine the allowance based on customer specific experience and the
aging of such receivables, among other factors. We do not have any off-balance-sheet credit
exposure related to our customers. Accounts receivable are also recorded net of product returns.

Warranty. Our standard warranty terms typically extend for one year from the date of
delivery, but cur current reserve balance includes three year agreements from prior periods. We
accrue for standard warranty costs in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “‘Accounting for
Contingencies” (“SFAS No. 5"), based on historical trends in warranty charges as a percentage of
gross product shipments. The accrual is reviewed regularly and periodically adjusted to reflect
changes in warranty cost estimates. Estimated warranty charges are recorded within cost of
products at the time products are sold. See Note 13, “Guarantees’’.

Stock-based compensation. Through year end 2005, we have accounted for stock-based
awards to employees and directors using the intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
(““APB 257). Under the intrinsic value method, we have recorded compensation expense related to
stock options in our consolidated statement of operations when the exercise price of our
employee stock-based award is less than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
the grant. Additionally, we have recorded compensation expense under the variable accounting
method for the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Long-Term Performance Program (the “LTPP") and have
recorded compensation expense pursuant to APB 25 in connection with option modifications in
2005. In August 2005 our Board of Directors approved a modification to the terms of the options
held by employees of our semiconductor products business to effect the acceleration of vesting for
all unvested options held by employees of that business, effective as of the date of the sale of the
business to Avago Technologies Ltd. (f/k/a Argos Acquisition Pte. Ltd.) (*‘Avago”). In connection
with this modification, we recorded $8 million of compensation expense in discontinued
operations for 2005. In addition, we have recorded APB 25 compensation expense in continuing
operations of $8 million in 2005, $7 million in 2004 and $6 million in 2003. The APB 25
compensation expense in 2005 and 2004 primarily related to our LTPP and, in 2003, to options
issued in connection with our acquisition of Objective Systems Integrators, Inc. See Note 3, “New
Accounting Pronouncements”, for new accounting for stock-based awards beginning November 1,
2005,

Pro forma information. Pro forma net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share
information, as required by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS
No. 123""), have been determined as if we had accounted for all employee stock options granted,
including shares issuable to employees under the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “423(b) Plan™), the LTPP and the Option Exchange Program described below,
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under SFAS No. 123’s fair value method. The pro forma effect of recognizing compensation
expense in accordance with SFAS No. 123 is as follows:

2005 2004 2003

(Restated)
(in millions, except
per share data)

Net income (loss) —asreported ...................... $ 327 $ 369 $(2,058)
APB 25 based compensation (2) .............. ... ..... 16 7 6
SFAS No. 123 based compensation (1) (2) . .............. (228) (256) (334)
Tax impact (2) .. .. ... e e e e 12 17 (613)
Net income (loss) —proforma ....................... $ 127 $137 $(2,999)
Basic net income (loss) per share — as reported .......... $0.66 $0.76 $ (4.35)
Basic net income (loss) per share — proforma ........... $0.26 $0.28 $ (6.34)
Diluted net income (loss) per share — as reported . . .. ..... $0.66 $0.76 $ (4.35)
Diluted net income (loss) per share — pro forma . ......... $0.26 $0.28 $ (6.34)
Weighted average shares used in computing net income
(loss) and pro forma net income (loss) per share:

Basicshares . ........... .. i 494 483 473
Diluted shares (3) .. ... ... i i 494 483 473

(1) The pro forma results for 2005, 2004 and 2003 include approximately $32 million, $70 million
and $23 million of compensation expense relating to our Option Exchange Program,
respectively. The remainder of the expense for those periods related to options granted over
the previous four years.
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(2) Due to the valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax assets as described in
Note 5, “Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes”, we have not recorded
any tax benefits attributable to pro forma stock option expenses for employees in the U.S.
and certain other foreign jurisdictions in 2004 and 2005. In addition to not recording such
benefits in 2003, we also eliminated $613 million of accumulated tax benefits recognized
between 1996 and 2002 for pro forma reporting purposes. The tax impact presented above
was computed for both the APB 25 and SFAS No. 123 stock-based compensation expense.

(3) Approximately 72 million, 71 million and 51 million outstanding options were considered
antidilutive for the purposes of this pro-forma calculation for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.
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The fair value of options granted was estimated at grant date using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate for options .. ... 3.556% 3.25% 2.23%
Risk-free interest rate for the 423(b)

Plan .. ......... ... .. ... ... . ... 2.42% 1.17% 1.44%
Dividend yield . . ... ............... 0% 0% 0%
Volatility for options (1) ............ 39% 57% 70%
Volatility for the 423(b) Plan (1) ...... 37% 36% 72%
Expected option life (2) .. ........... 4 years 5.5 years 3.5-5.5 years
Expected life for the 423(b) Plan (2) ... 6 months-2 years 6 months-1 year 6 months-2 years

(1) For the fiscal years ended 2004 and 2003, we used our historical volatility to estimate
expected stock price volatility used in the computation of stock-based compensation under
the fair value method. For the fiscal year ended 2005, for our employee stock options, we
used a 4-year period, of equally weighted historical volatility and market-based implied
volatility for the computation of stock-based compensation. For the fiscal year ended 2005, for
the 423(b) Plan, we used a market-based implied volatility of the same term as the expected
life. Management believes that based on current data these estimates of volatility are
reasonably representative of future trends.

(2) In the first quarter of 2005, we refined our estimate of the expected life of our options. In
refining this estimate, we considered several factors, including the expected lives used by a
peer group of companies and the historical option exercise behavior of our employees. Based
on current data our best estimate of the expected life of our options granted in during the
fiscal year ended 2005 is 4 years.

SFAS No. 123 requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions within option
pricing models to determine the value of employee stock options. For purposes of pro forma
disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense using an accelerated
method over the vesting period of the options and amortized over six months to two years for the
423(b) Plan.

Shipping and handling costs. Our shipping and handling costs charged to customers are
included in net revenue, and the associated expense is recorded in cost of products for all periods
presented.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets. Our accounting complies with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”"), which we adopted on November 1,
2002 (the beginning of fiscal 2003). Goodwill is not amortized but reviewed annually (or more
frequently if impairment indicators arise) for impairment. Purchased intangible assets are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed using the straight-line method
over the economic lives of the respective assets, generally three to five years.

In 2003, as part of our initial assessment of goodwill impairment under SFAS No. 142, we

used the fair value measurement requirement, rather than the previously required undiscounted
cash flows approach. As a result of that assessment, we recorded a transitional impairment loss
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from the implementation of SFAS No. 142 as a change in accounting principle in the first quarter
of 2003. The fair value of the reporting units was determined primarily by the income approach,
which estimates the fair value based on the future discounted cash flows. The first step evaluation
of reporting units on a fair value basis, as required by SFAS No. 142, indicated that impairment
existed in the communications solutions reporting unit within our electronic measurement
business. The revenue forecasts of the communications solutions reporting unit had been
impacted by the prolonged economic downturn in the communications test markets. As such, we
were required to perform the second step analysis to determine the amount of the impairment
loss for the reporting unit that failed the first step test. The second step analysis consisted of
comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill with the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill, with an impairment charge resulting from any excess of the carrying
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill.
Based upon this evaluation, we recorded an impairment charge of $268 million, representing

100 percent of the reporting unit’s goodwill and approximately 44 percent of total consolidated
goodwill recorded as of November 1, 2002. Subsequent to our initial assessment of goodwill
impairment, we have recognized no goodwill impairment charges.

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $33 million in
2005, $46 million in 2004 and $42 million in 2003 for Agilent continuing operations.

Research and development. Costs related to research, design and development of our
products are charged to research and development expense as they are incurred.

Taxes on income. Income tax expense or benefit is based on income or loss before taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized principally for the expected tax consequences of
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts.
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Net income (loss) per share. Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net
income (loss) — the numerator — by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — the denominator — during the period excluding the dilutive effect of stock options
and other employee stock plans. Diluted net income (loss) per share gives effect to all potentially
dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. In computing diluted net
income (loss) per share, the average stock price for the period is used in determining the number
of shares assumed to be purchased from the proceeds of stock option exercises. Diluted net
income per share for 2005, 2004 and 2003 excluded the potentially dilutive effect of 49 million,
41 million and 51 million options to purchase common stock, respectively, as their effect was
antidilutive. It also excluded shares issuable upon conversion of our then outstanding $1.15 billion
senior convertible debenture as the effect was not dilutive for those periods, using the
if-converted method pursuant to SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”.

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. We classify investments as cash
equivalents if their original or remaining maturity is three months or less at the date of purchase.
Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Approximately 55 percent of our cash and cash equivalents is held in the U.S., and 25 percent
is held in a centrally managed global cash pool outside the U.S. The remainder is held by other
Agilent entities throughout the world. Approximately 10 percent of our overall cash and cash
equivalents is maintained in demand deposit accounts with global financial institutions of high
credit quality and is available to be used in paying and receiving activities. The remainder is
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invested in institutional money market funds, short-term bank time deposits and similar short-
duration instruments with fixed maturities from overnight to three months. We continuously
monitor the creditworthiness of the financial institutions and institutional money market funds in
which we invest our surplus funds. We have not experienced any credit losses from cash
investments.

We classify investments as short-term investments if their original or remaining maturities
are greater than three months and their remaining maturities are one year or less. Qur short-term
investments consist of bank time deposits, which by their nature are typically held to maturity,
and are classified as such because we have the intent and ability to hold them to maturity.
Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost.

Fair value of financial instruments. The carrying values of certain of our financial
instruments, including cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, accrued
compensation and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of their short
maturities. The fair value of equity investments is determined using quoted market prices for
those securities where available.

Concentration of credit risk. We sell the majority of our products through our direct sales
force. No single customer accounted for 10 percent or more of the combined accounts receivable
balance at October 31, 2005 or 2004. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is generally
diversified due to the large number of entities comprising our customer base and their dispersion
across many different industries and geographies. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our
customers’ financial conditions and require collateral, such as letters of credit and bank
guarantees, in certain circumstances.

Derivative instruments. Agilent is exposed to global market exchange rate risks in the
normal course of business. We enter into foreign exchange contracts, primarily forward contracts
and purchased options, to manage financial exposures resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. These contracts are designated at inception as hedges of the related foreign
currency exposures, which include committed and anticipated revenue and expense transactions
and assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the subsidiary, which has the exposure. For option contracts, we exclude time value from the
measurement of effectiveness. To achieve hedge accounting, contracts must reduce the foreign
currency exchange rate risk otherwise inherent in the amount and duration of the hedged
exposures and comply with established risk management policies; hedging contracts generally
mature within twelve months. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or
trading purposes.

The derivatives entered into by Agilent are designated either as cash flow or fair value
hedges. All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair values. For derivative
instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, changes in value of the
derivative are recognized in income in the current period, along with the offsetting gain or loss on
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. For derivative instruments that are designated
and qualify as a cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the effective portion of the derivative
instrument are recognized in accumulated comprehensive income (loss), a component of
stockholders’ equity. These amounts are reclassified and recognized in income when either the
forecasted transaction occurs or it becomes probable the forecasted transaction will not occur.
Fair value hedges are recorded in net income and are offset by the changes in fair value of the
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underlying assets or liabilities being hedged. Changes in the fair value of the ineffective portion of
derivative instruments are recognized in earnings in the current period. Ineffectiveness in 2005,
2004 and 2003 was not significant.

We may also, from time to time, acquire warrants or other equity types of securities to
purchase securities of other companies as part of strategic relationships.

Inventory. Inventory is valued at standard cost, which approximates actual cost computed
on a first-in, first-out basis, not in excess of market value. We assess the valuation of our
inventory on a quarterly basis and periodically write down the value for estimated excess and
obsolete inventory based on estimates about future demand. The excess balance determined by
this analysis becomes the basis for our excess inventory charge. Our marketing department plays
a key role in our excess inventory review process by providing updated sales forecasts, managing
product rollovers and working with manufacturing to maximize recovery of excess inventory.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements and major renewals are capitalized;
maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets are retired or
disposed of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from
our general ledger, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in the consolidated statement of
operations. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over the lesser of their useful lives or the
remaining term of the lease and machinery and equipment over three to ten years. We are
currently using the straight-line method to depreciate assets. However, prior to 2002 assets were
being depreciated principally using accelerated methods and will continue to be depreciated
under those historical methods until they are fully depreciated or retired.
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Capitalized software. We capitalize certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire
or create internal use software in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”. Capitalized software
is included in property, plant and equipment and is depreciated over three to five years when
development is complete.

Impairment of long-lived assets. We continually monitor events and changes in
circumstances that could indicate carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including intangible
assets, may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances occur, we assess
the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets
will be recovered through undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the
undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of those assets, we recognize an
impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets.

Foreign currency translation. We follow SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”, for
both the translation and remeasurement of balance sheet and income statement items into U.S.
dollars. For those subsidiaries that operate in a local currency functional environment, all assets
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using current exchange rates; revenue and expenses
are translated using average exchange rates in effect during each period. Resulting translation
adjustments are reported as a separate component of accumulated comprehensive income (loss) in
stockholders’ equity.
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For those subsidiaries that operate in a U.S. dollar functional environment, foreign currency
assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates except for
nonmonetary assets and capital accounts which are remeasured at historical exchange rates.
Revenue and expenses are generally remeasured at monthly exchange rates which approximate
average exchange rates in effect during each period. Gains or losses from foreign currency
remeasurement are included in consolidated net income (loss).

3. New Accounting Pronouncements
Adoption of New Pronouncementls.

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’’) issued SFAS No. 151,
“Inventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 43” (“SFAS 151"), which is the result of its efforts
to converge U.S. accounting standards for inventories with International Accounting Standards.
SFAS No. 151 requires idle facility expenses, freight, handling costs, and wasted material
(spoilage) costs to be recognized as current-period charges. It also requires that allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the
production facilities. SFAS No. 151 will be effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expect this standard to have a material impact on
our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004) “Share-Based Payment”
(‘“SFAS No. 123(R)""). SFAS No. 123(R) addresses all forms of share-based payment (“SBP’")
awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted
stock and stock appreciation rights. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes our current accounting for SBP
awards under APB No. 25 and requires us to recognize compensation expense for all SBP awards
based on fair value. In March 2005, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, ‘“‘Share-
Based Payment” (“SAB No. 107”) relating to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). Beginning in the
first quarter of 2006, we will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R)} under modified prospective
transition method using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Under the new standard, our
estimate of compensation expense will require a number of complex and subjective assumptions
including our stock price volatility, employee exercise patterns (expected life of the options),
future forfeitures and related tax effects. We will recognize SBP compensation expense for awards
issued after November 1, 2005 on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award. For
awards issued prior to November 1, 2005, we will recognize SBP compensation expense based on
FASB Interpretation 28 ‘“Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock
Option or Award Plans an interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25", which provides for
accelerated expensing. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of SFAS No. 123(R) on our
results of operations and financial condition.

In February 2005, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue No. 03-13,
“Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether to
Report Discontinued Operations” (“EITF 03-13’"). EITF 03-13 gives guidance on how to evaluate
whether the operations and cash flows of a disposed component have been or will be eliminated
from ongoing operations and the types of continuing involvement that constitute significant
continuing involvement in the operations of the disposed component. EITF 03-13 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004. Agilent has applied the provisions of EITF 03-13
in determining its discontinued operations presentation as of October 31, 2005.
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In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”
(*‘SFAS No. 154’"). SFAS No. 154 is a replacement of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20
and SFAS No. 3. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of
accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes retrospective application as the required
method for reporting a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance for
determining whether retrospective application of a change in accounting principle is impracticable
and for reporting a change when retrospective application is impracticable. SFAS No. 154 also
addresses the reporting of a correction of an error by restating previously issued financial
statements, SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We will be adopting this pronouncement beginning
in our fiscal year 2007 and do not currently believe that it will have a material impact on our
financial statements.

In June 2005, the FASB issued Financial Staff Position (“FSP’") FAS 143-1, “Accounting for
Electronic Equipment Waste Obligations” (‘“FSP 143-1""), which provides guidance on the
accounting for certain obligations associated with the Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (the “Directive’), which was adopted by the European Union (“EU™). Under the
Directive, the waste management obligation for historical equipment (products put on the market
on or prior to August 13, 2005) remains with the commercial user until the equipment is replaced.
In the fourth quarter of 2005, we adopted FSP 143-1 in those EU member countries that
transposed the Directive into country-specific laws. We are currently evaluating the effect that the
adoption of FSP 143-1 will have on our consolidated financial statements. Such effects will
depend on the respective laws adopted by all the EU member countries.
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In September 2005, the FASB issued EITF Issue No. 04-13, “Accounting for Purchases and
Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty’” (“EITF 04-13"). The issue provided guidance on
the circumstances under which two or more inventory transactions with the same counterparty
should be viewed as a single nonmonetary transaction within the scope of APB Opinion No. 29,
“Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions.” The issue also provided guidance on circumstances
under which nonmonetary exchanges of inventory within the same line of business should be
recognized at fair value. EITF 04-13 will be effective for transactions completed in reporting
periods beginning after March 15, 2006. We are evaluating the impact that this issue will have on
our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 123(R)-2, “Practical Accommodation to the
Application of Grant Date as Defined in FAS 123(R)” (““FSP 123(R)-2’’). FSP 123(R)-2 provides
guidance on the application of grant date as defined in SFAS No. 123(R). In accordance with this
standard a grant date of an award exists if a) the award is a unilateral grant and b) the key terms
and conditions of the award are expected to be communicated to an individual recipient within a
relatively short time period from the date of approval. We will adopt this standard when we adopt
SFAS No. 123(R), and it will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related to
Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards” (“FSP 123(R)-3""). FSP 123(R)-3
provides an elective alternative method that establishes a computational component to arrive at
the beginning balance of the accumulated paid-in capital pool related to employee compensation
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and a simplified method to determine the subsequent impact on the accumulated paid-in capital
pool of employee awards that are fully vested and outstanding upon the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R). We are currently evaluating this transition method.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, ‘“The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments” (*FSP 115-1 and
124-1""), which clarifies when an investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is
other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. It also includes accounting
considerations subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires
certain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary
impairments. FSP 115-1 and 124-1 are effective for all reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2005. At October 31, 2005, we had no unrealized investment losses that had not
been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments in our available-for-sale securities. We do
not anticipate that the implementation of these statements will have a significant impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

4. Discontinued Operations

In August 2005, the Board of Directors approved the divestiture of our semiconductor
products business. We subsequently signed an Asset Purchase Agreement with Avago
Technologies Ltd. (f/k/a Argos Acquisition Pte. Ltd.) (“‘Avago”) providing for the sale of our
semiconductor products business for approximately $2.66 billion. The purchase price is subject to
adjustment based on a determination of our semiconductor products business’ Adjusted EBITDA
(as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement) and working capital at closing. The sale closed in
December 2005. See Note 24, “Subsequent Events’.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect our semiconductor products business, including
the camera module business, as a discontinued operation in accordance with SFAS No.144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No.144’"). As required
under SFAS No.144, we have ceased depreciation and amortization on our assets held for sale as
of August 2005. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of our semiconductor
products business have been classified as discontinued operations and prior periods have been
restated.

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003

(Restated)

(in millions)
NEet FeVENUE . . . v\ it ittt et et et et e $1,796  $2,021 $1,588
Costs and exXpenses .. ... ... i e 1,570 1,779 1,594
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ............. 226 242 (6)
Other income (expense), net . . ...... ... .t 6 - 3
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before taxes ... 232 242 3)
Provision (benefit) fortaxes . .. ......... ... ... ... ..., 46 — 10
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations .......... $ 186 $ 242 $ (13
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The following table presents Agilent’s semiconductor products business assets and liabilities:

October 31
2005 2004
(in millions)
Assets:
Accounts receivable . . . ... . $219 $256
Inventory. . ... .. e e 178 217
Other current assets . .. ... ...ttt e e 26 12
Current assets of discontinued operations. . .. ............ ... ... .... 423 485
Property, plant and equipment, net .. .. ......... ... ... . .. .. ..., 277 274
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net. .. ...................... 99 98
101 ¢ 1<) o= YT . 43 45
Non-current assets of discontinued operations ...................... 419 417
Total assets of discontinued operations. . ... ....................... $842 $902
Liabilities:
Accounts payable. . . . .. ... e $121 $135
Employee compensation and benefits. . .. ............. ... ... ..., 22 23
Other current liabilities . . ... ...... .. ... .. . . e 7 13
Current liabilities of discontinued operations ....................... $150 $171

5. Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes
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We have restated our historical consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2004, quarterly
financial data for the fourth quarter ended October 31, 2004, and selected financial data for fiscal
2004. The determination to restate these consolidated financial statements and selected financial
data was made by our management in consultation with the Audit & Finance Committee on
January 13, 2006, as a result of our identification of an error related to the accounting for income
taxes. During the October 31, 2004 year-end close process, the Company miscalculated and
understated its estimate of U.S. jurisdictional loss. By correcting the error and revising the
estimate of U.S. loss, this resulted in the recognition of additional tax benefit associated with the
loss and a corresponding additional income tax expense associated with Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income pursuant to SFAS No. 109. This error was identified through the operation
of our internal control over financial reporting in 2005. The Restatement decreases our provision
for income taxes for fiscal 2004 by $20 million and increases net income by $20 million, or $0.04
per diluted share.
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes is comprised of:

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions)
U.S. federal taxes from continuing operations:
CUITENE &\ e e e et et et e e e $ 40 $ — 5 -
Deferred ... ....... .. i e — — 876
Non-U.S. taxes from continuing operations:
Current . ... .. e e e 124 85 75
Deferred .. .. ... ... e e e (12) an 63
State taxes from continuing operations, net of federal benefit
CUITent . . .. e e e 3 3 2
Deferred . ... .. ... . . .. e - - 74
Total from continuing operations: ... ................... $155 $ 71 $1,090

The significant components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities included on the
consolidated balance sheet are:

October 31,
2003 2004
Deferred  Deferred  Deferred  Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
' (in millions)

InVentory. . ..ottt $ 152 $ — $ 200 $ -
Property, plant and equipment ............. 19 146 22 135
Warranty reserves ... .o v v e v v e e e e 18 - 25 —
Retiree medical benefits. . ... .............. 54 1 55 -
Other retirement benefits. . . .. ............. 52 92 - 62
Employee benefits, other than retirement. . . ... 237 — 230 1
Net operating losses and credit carryforwards . . 1,314 — 1,350 —
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries . . . . — 301 - 301
Convertible interest . . .. .................. — - - 83
Other........ ... ... .. . . i ... 95 15 103 95

Subtotal . ....... ... ... .. .. ... .. 1,941 555 1,985 677
Tax valuation allowance .................. (1,371) - (1,317 —

$ 570 $555 $ 668 $677

As of October 31, 2005, the consolidated balance sheet reflects the allocation of the valuation
allowance based on the pro-rata portion of gross current and non-current deferred tax assets in
each jurisdiction where a valuation allowance was required. The amounts as of October 31, 2004
were reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. This resulted in a $86 million
increase to current deferred tax assets (included in Other current assets), $2 million increase in
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non-current deferred tax assets (included in Other assets), a $2 million decrease in current
deferred tax liabilities (included in Income taxes payable) and a $90 million increase to
non-current deferred tax liabilities (included in Other long-term liabilities) on the consolidated
balance sheet compared to previously reported amounts.

During the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge to establish a valuation
allowance of $1.4 billion, which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax benefits recorded
during the first six months of 2003 resulting in an approximately $1.0 billion net tax provision
recorded within provision for taxes for 2003. The valuation allowance was determined in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, which requires an assessment of both positive
and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax
assets are recoverable. Such assessment is required on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis.
Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S. and selected entities in other jurisdictions in recent years
represented sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 to require a full valuation allowance
in these entities. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance was recorded. We intend to maintain a
full valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of the
valuation allowance.

At October 31, 2005, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$1,454 million and tax credit carryforwards of approximately $516 million. An immaterial amount
of net operating losses expired in 2005 with the remainder expiring in tax years through 2024, if
not utilized. The tax credit carryforwards will expire beginning in 2006 through 2025, if not
utilized. In addition, the company has California net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $167 million and state tax credit carryforwards of $143 million. An immaterial
amount of California net operating losses expired in 2005 with the remainder expiring in tax
years through 2014, if not utilized. State tax credits of $18 million expire beginning in 2006
through 2018, if not utilized. Included in the total net operating loss carryforwards are net
operating losses of $88 million related to employee stock option exercises, the benefits of which
will increase additional paid in capital when realized.

The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and our effective tax rate
from continuing operations are:

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
U.S. federal statutory income taxrate. . ................... 35.0% 35.0% (35.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .. .. .............. 7 .8 3.1
Non-U.S. income taxed at differentrates. ... ............... 35.4 23.8 (1.4)
Nondeductible goodwill .. ........... ... ... ... .. .... - 3.2 2.3
R&D credits . ... .. i i e 3.7 (2.6) (1.6)
Extraterritorial income exclusion .. ...................... 8.9 (6.6) (3.2)
AJCA dividend repatriation ................ .. ... ... ..., 8.1 - -
Other, net. . . ... . e e e e .6 (2.0) (.2)
Valuation allowance .. ........... . .. (19.9) (157 200.8

52.3% 35.9% 158.6%
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The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) earnings from continuing operations
before taxes are:

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in millions)
U.S. continuing operations .. ...........c.cvemiieennnnn.. 3176  $(92) $(509)
Non-U.S. continuing operations. . .. .......... .. ... ..... 120 290 (178)

$296 $198 $(687)

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) was signed into law.
The AJCA creates a temporary incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated income
earned abroad by providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for certain dividends
from controlled foreign corporations. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we distributed cash
from our foreign subsidiaries and will report an extraordinary dividend (as defined in the AJCA)
of $970 million and a related tax liability of approximately $48 million in our fiscal 2005 federal
and state income tax returns. For fiscal 2005, $23 million of the $48 million is provided for in the
discontinuing operations’ provision for income taxes while the remaining is provided for in the
continuing operations’ provision for income taxes.

Agilent has not recorded deferred income taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries, the cumulative amount of which is approximately $355 million as of October 31,
2005. Our policy is to continue to invest the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries
indefinitely outside of the United States, with the exception of the amounts repatriated in the year
ended October 31, 2005 under the AJCA. If management decides to remit this income to the U.S.
in a future period, our provision for income taxes may increase materially in that period.

We are subject to ongoing tax examinations of our tax returns by the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities in various jurisdictions. We regularly assess the likelihood of
adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision
for income taxes.

Agilent enjoys tax holidays in several different jurisdictions, most significantly in Singapore,
Malaysia and Switzerland. The tax holidays provide lower rates of taxation on certain classes of
income and require various thresholds of investments and employment in those jurisdictions.
During 2003, 2004 and 2005, Agilent enjoyed tax holidays that applied to manufacturing income
generated in Malaysia and Singapore. The tax holidays in both Malaysia and Singapore expire in
2013. Beginning in 2004, Agilent secured a reduced tax rate in Switzerland for income generated
from activity that Agilent began in Switzerland during that year. The tax holiday expires in 2013.
In addition, Agilent secured an additional Singapore tax holiday in 2004 for earnings from
investments and related activity that began in that country in 2004. That tax holiday applies to
applicable earnings of Agilent until the end of 2013, with the opportunity for a reduced rate
thereafter.

As a result of the incentives, the impact of the tax holidays decreased income taxes by
$54 million, $96 million and zero in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The benefit of the tax
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holidays on net income per share (diluted) was approximately $0.11, $0.20 and zero in 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

6. Stock-Based Compensation

Employee stock purchase plans. Effective November 1, 2000, we adopted the 423(b) Plan.
Under the provisions of the 423(b) Plan, eligible employees may contribute up to ten percent of
their base compensation to purchase shares of our common stock at 85 percent of the lower of
the fair market value at the entry date or the purchase date as defined by the 423(b) Plan. As of
October 31, 2005, 48,559,336 shares of our common stock were authorized for issuance under the
423(b) Plan, and 28,675,035 of these shares have been issued.

Incentive compensation plans. On September 17, 1999, we adopted the Agilent
Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (the “Stock Plan’) and subsequently reserved 67,800,000
shares of our common stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. In addition, on May 31, 2000,
19,000,000 shares of our common stock were registered pursuant to converted stock options
previously granted by HP. In February 2001, our stockholders approved an additional 45,000,000
shares of our common stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. These shares were subsequently
registered in May 2002. At October 31, 2005, shares registered and available for option and
restricted stock grants were 41,536,474.

Stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards and cash awards may be granted under
the Stock Plan. Options granted under the Stock Plan may be either “incentive stock options”, as
defined in section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, or non-statutory. Options generally vest at a
rate of 25 percent per year over a period of four years from the date of grant and generally have
a maximum term of ten years. The exercise price for stock options is generally not less than
100 percent of the fair market value of our common stock on the date the stock award is granted.

On March 4, 2003, our stockholders approved an amendment to the Stock Plan. The
amendment permitted the company to offer a one-time exchange of options issued under the
Stock Plan having an exercise price greater than $25 for a lesser number of options to be granted
at least six months and one day from the cancellation of surrendered options (the “Option
Exchange Program’). On May 20, 2003, we implemented the Option Exchange Program by filing a
Tender Offer Statement with the SEC, which allowed eligible employees a one-time opportunity to
exchange options to purchase shares of the company’s common stock, whether vested or
unvested, which were granted under our Stock Plan, with exercise prices greater than $25 per
share. The Option Exchange Program was offered from May 20, 2003 to June 18, 2003 and options
to purchase approximately 26 million shares were exchanged, with an average exercise price of
$51. As a result, the company issued options to purchase approximately 13.8 million shares at a
weighted-average exercise price of $28 per share during the first quarter of 2004. Under the
provisions of APB 25 no compensation expense has been, or will be, recognized in our
consolidated statement of operations for the issuance of the replacement options.

Effective November 1, 2003, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved
the LTPP for the company’s executive officers. Participants in this program are entitled to receive
unrestricted shares of the company’s stock after the end of a three-year period, if specified
performance targets are met. On November 18, 2003 the Compensation Committee approved
approximately 322,000 shares to be issued to the company’s executive officers that will be
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awarded in fiscal 2007. On November 16, 2004, the Compensation Committee approved
approximately 419,000 shares to be issued for the company’s executive officers that will be
awarded in fiscal year 2008. On November 15, 2005, the Compensation Committee approved
approximately 216,600 shares to be issued for the company’s executives that will be awarded in
fiscal year 2009. In all cases, the final award may vary as it is based on certain performance
metrics. We include the dilutive impact of this program in our diluted net income per share
calculation.

The following table summarizes option activity for the years ended October 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding as of October 31,2002 .. .................. 73,839 $40
Granted . ... ... ... 13,152 $16
Exercised . ... .. .. . . e (1,768) $12
Cancelled under Option Exchange Program.............. (25,882) $51
Other cancellations . . .. ......... .ttt (7,975) $41
Outstanding as of October 31, 2003 . . .................. 51,366 $29
Granted ... ..o vt e 12,136 $32
Exercised .. ... ... (2,859) $19
Granted under Option Exchange Program . . ............. 13,797 $28
Other cancellations . . .. ............c. ... ... (3,464) $38
Outstanding as of October 31,2004 .................... 70,976 $29
Granted .. ... . e e 11,231 $22
Exercised .. ... i e (5,182) $21
Cancelled .. .......c. . e (4,498) $34
Outstanding as of October 31, 2005. . .................. 72,527 $28
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The following table summarizes options exercisable and the fair value of options granted:

Value Using
Weighted Average Black-Scholes
Shares Exercise Price Model
(in thousands)
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2003 . . 26,141 $35
Black-Scholes value of options granted
during 2003 .. ... .. .. ... .. $9
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2004 . . 31,023 $32
Black-Scholes value of options granted
during 2004 . ...... .. .. .. o $16
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2005 . . 40,329 $31
Black-Scholes value of options granted
during 2005 . . ......... ... .. .. .. ... $ 8
The following table summarizes information about all options outstanding at October 31, »
2005: .g
c
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable g
Weighted =
Average Weighted Weighted 5
Remaining Average Average o
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise é
!E_xil;cise_l’_n'fe_s Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price )
(in thousands) (in thousands) g
$ 0-16.. .. . i 1,278 6.5 years $13 1,120 $13 &
$1501L-25........ ... ... .. 21,876 8.0 years $19 6,106 $18
$25.01-30.. ..., .. . 28,599 6.7 years $27 19,248 $27
$30.01-40........... .. ... ..., 15,109 6.4 years $34 8,190 $35
$4001-50.................... 3,273 3.5 years $44 3,273 $44
$50andover .. .........i... 2,392 4.7 years $67 2,392 $67
72,527 $28 40,329 $31
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7. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted
net income (loss) per share computations for the periods presented below.

Years Ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated)
(in millions)
Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .. ............ $141 $127 $(1,777)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . 186 242 (13)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting
changes . .. ... ... .. ... ... 327 369 (1,790)
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 .. .......... - - (268)
Net income (10S8) . .. .. v ittt $327 $369 $(2,058)
Denominators:
Basic weighted average shares ...................... 494 483 473
Potentially dilutive common stock equivalents — stock
options and other employee stock plans ............. 6 7 —
Diluted weighted average shares . . .. ................. 500 490 473

The following table presents options to purchase shares of common stock, which were not
included in the computation of diluted net income per share because they were anti-dilutive.
Diluted net loss per share for 2003 excluded the potentially dilutive effect of all common stock
equivalents as the effect was antidilutive.

Years Ended

October 31,
2005 2004 2008
Options to purchase shares of common stock (in millions) . ... .. .. 49 4] 51
Weighted-average exercise price . . . ... i, $33 $35 $29
Average common stock price . ............. .. ... $25  $27  $19

The computation of diluted net income per share for the fiscal years ended 2004 and 2003
does not include 36 million shares issuable upon conversion of our then outstanding $1.15 billion
senior convertible debenture as the effect was not dilutive for those periods, using the
if-converted method pursuant to SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”. For the fiscal year ended
2005, our convertible debt was redeemed as of September 9, 2005 and therefore no longer
outstanding nor part of the computation,
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8. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for income taxes was $75 million in 2005, $149 million in 2004 and $122 million in
2003. Cash paid for interest was $44 million in 2005, $36 million in 2004 and $36 million in 2003.

Non cash transactions in 2005 primarily related to the conversion of approximately
$466 million of the principal amount of convertible debt into common stock, In addition, accrued
interest of approximately $4 million relating to the convertible debt was recorded in equity as
part of the cost of the new shares issued. Non-cash transactions in 2004 related primarily to an
acquisition in October 2004, and we issued approximately 772,000 shares with an approximate
value of $18 million.

9. Inventory

October 31,
2005 2008

(in millions)
Finished goods .. ... ... .. i $306 $299
Work in progress . . ... v ittt i e 63 69
Raw materials .. ....... ... . .. i e 353 441
$722 3809

Inventory-related charges of $84 million, $19 million and $17 million were recorded in total
cost of products in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We record excess and obsolete inventory
charges for both inventory on our site as well as inventory at our contract manufacturers and
suppliers where we have non-cancelable purchase commitments.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

October 31,
2005 2004

(in millions)
Land ... ... e $ 8 $§ 96
Buildings and leasehold improvements.................. 1,328 1,460
Machinery and equipment . .............. ... ... ...... 862 886
SOftware . ... ... ... e e 396 405
Total property, plant and equipment . .................. 2,670 2,847
Accumulated depreciation and amortization.............. (1,797 (1,863)

$ 873 § 984

We sold assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2005, 2004 and
2003. Gross proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment were $54 million in 2005,
$34 million in 2004, and $2 million in 2003. Gains from the dispositions of businesses, included in
other income (expense), net in the consolidated statement of operations were $6 million in 2005,
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zero in 2004 and $5 million in 2003. Asset impairments other than restructuring were $4 million
in 2005, zero in 2004, and $13 million in 2003,

11. Investments

Investments in cost basis and equity method investments and securities classified as trading
securities or available-for-sale and included in other assets on our balance sheet were as follows
at October 31, 2005 and 2004 (net book value):

October 31,
2005 2004
Investments in and advances to equity method investees . .. ... .. $119 $ 99
Cost method investments . . . ... ...... ... ... .. . ... ..., 34 32
Trading securities . ... .. ...ttt 53 45
Available-for-sale investments (original cost of $61 million in 2005
and $74 million in 2004) .. .. ... . ... ... 74 66
Total ... e e e $_2@ $242

|

Cost method investments consist of non-marketable equity securities and are accounted for at
historical cost. For investments where we have significant influence over the investee, the equity
method of accounting is used. Agilent’s proportionate share of income or loss for equity method
investments is recorded currently in earnings. Trading securities are reported at fair value, with
gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value recognized currently in earnings. Investments
designated as available-for-sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of
tax, included in stockholders’ equity.

All of our investments (excluding trading securities) are subject to periodic impairment
review., However, the impairment analysis requires significant judgment to identify events or
circumstances that would likely have significant adverse effect on the future use of the
investment.

Charges related to other than temporary impairments were $18 million for 2005 and
$15 million in 2004 and 2003. These impairment charges were recorded in other income
(expense), net in the consolidated statement of operations.

Realized gains and losses on our trading securities portfolio were $5 million gain in 2005,
2004 and 2003. Realized gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities was
$8 million in 2005 and not material in 2004 and 2003.

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we sold 1 percent of our interest in Lumileds to
Philips for a gain of $8 million, which is included in equity in net income of unconsolidated
affiliate (including gain) — Lumileds in our consolidated statement of operations. In
November 2005, subsequent to year end we sold our entire remaining investment in Lumileds to
Philips. See Note 22, “Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Affiliate (including Gain) —
Lumileds”, and Note 24, “Subsequent Events’'.
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12. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The goodwill balances as of October 31, 2005 and 2004 and the movements in each of the
years ended October 31, 20056 and 2004 for each of our reportable segments are shown in the
table below:

Bio-
Electronic Semiconductor analytical
Measurement Test Solutions Measurement Total
(in millions)

Goodwill at October 31,2003 ............... $241 $31 $23 $295
Foreign currency translation impact .. ........ 8 - - 8
Goodwill arising from acquisitions ........... 5 - 16 21
Goodwill at October 31,2004 ............... 2564 31 39 324
Foreign currency translation impact .. ........ (16) @ - (20)
Goodwill arising from acquisitions ........... 7 = 13 20
Goodwill at October 31,2005 .............. $245 $27 $52 $324

The component parts of other intangibles assets as of October 31, 2005 and October 31, 2004
are shown in the table below:

Other Intangible Assets

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value

(in millions)
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As of October 31, 2005:

Purchased technology . .. ................. $153 $126 $27

Customer relationships . . .. ............... 38 27 _11_
Total . ....... i e $191 $153 $_3§

As of October 31, 2004:

Purchased technology . . .................. $132 $118 $14

Customer relationships . . . ................ 29 22 _’Z
Total . ......... . . i $161 $140 $_2_1

We purchased $30 million of other intangibles and recorded $20 million of goodwill during
2005, which were related to three acquisitions. Pro-forma disclosures are not presented for these
acquisitions as they were not material.

Amortization of intangible assets was $13 million in 2005, $17 million in 2004 and $42 million
in 2003. Future amortization expense related to existing intangible assets is estimated to be
$15 million for 2006, $12 million for 2007, $8 million for 2008 and $3 million thereafter.

During 2003, we recognized an impairment charge pursuant to SFAS No. 144 of
approximately $10 million for intangible assets (representing developed technology and customer
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relationships) in our electronic measurement business as a result of a decline in the projected
future cash flows. The impairment charge was recorded in cost of sales ($8 million) and selling,
general, and administrative ($2 million) in the consolidated statement of operations.

13. Guarantees

Standard Warranty

A summary of the standard warranty accrual activity is shown in the table below, see
Note 16, “Other Accrued Liabilities and Other Long-Term liabilities’":

Years Ended

October 31,
2005 2004

Tn_millions)
Balance as of October 31, 2004 and 2003 ................... $ 59 $ 71
Accruals for warranties issued during the period ............. 57 68

Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in

estimates) . .. ... ... .. e 8 2)
Settlements made during the period . ...................... ﬁ) (78)
Balance as of October 31, 2005 and 2004 ................... $_4€_5 $ 59

Extended Warranty

Revenue for our extended warranty contracts with terms beyond one year is deferred and
recognized on a straight-line basis over the contract period. Related costs are expensed as
incurred. Short-term amounts are included in deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheet
and were $33 million and $18 million at October 31, 2005 and October 31, 2004, respectively. The
long term amounts are recorded in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and were
$56 million and $39 million at October 31, 2005 and October 31, 2004, respectively.

Years Ended

2005 2004
Balance as of October 31, 2004 and 2003 ................... $57 $33
Recognition of Revenue. . . ... ...... ... ... (19 (15)
Deferral of revenue for new contracts . . .................... 51 39
Balance as of October 31, 2005 and 2004 ................... $89 $57

Lease Guarantees

During the quarter ended April 30, 2005 we entered into an amended Vendor Finance
agreement with CIT Group Inc. (formerly Tyco Capital Corporation) that released Agilent from
substantially all credit guarantees. As part of this agreement Agilent was also released of liability
relating to the guarantees that could require us to repurchase individual leases if the
documentation we provided to support the lease was not materially accurate. The impact of this
was not material.
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Indemnifications to Hewlett-Packard

We have given multiple indemnities to Hewlett-Packard (“HP’’) in connection with our
activities prior to our spin-off from HP for the businesses that constituted Agilent prior to the
spin-off. These indemnifications cover a variety of aspects of our business, including, but not
limited to, employee, tax, intellectual property and environmental matters. The agreements
containing these indemnifications have been previously disclosed as exhibits to our registration
statement on Form S-1 filed on August 16, 1999, In our opinion, the fair value of these
indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Officers and Directors

Our corporate by-laws require that we indemnify our officers and directors, as well as those
who act as directors and officers of other entities at our request, against expenses, judgments,
fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any
proceedings arising out of their services to Agilent. In addition, we have entered into separate
indemnification agreements with each director and each board-appointed officer of Agilent which
provide for indemnification of these directors and officers under similar circumstances and under
additional circumstances. The indemnification obligations are more fully described in the by-laws
and the indemnification agreements. We purchase standard insurance to cover claims or a portion
of the claims made against our directors and officers. Since a maximum obligation is not explicitly
stated in our by-laws or in our indemnification agreements and will depend on the facts and
circumstances that arise out of any future claims, the overall maximum amount of the obligations
cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made payments related to these
obligations, and the fair value for these obligations is zero on the consolidated balance sheet as of
October 31, 2005.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in our industry and as provided for in local law in the U.S. and other
jurisdictions, many of our standard contracts provide remedies to our customers and others with
whom we enter into contracts, such as defense, settlement, or payment of judgment for
intellectual property claims related to the use of our products. From time to time, we indemnify
customers, as well as our suppliers, contractors, lessors, lessees, companies that purchase our
businesses or assets and others with whom we enter into contracts, against combinations of loss,
expense, or liability arising from various triggering events related to the sale and the use of our
products and services, the use of their goods and services, the use of facilities and state of our
owned facilities, the state of the assets and businesses that we sell and other matters covered by
such contracts, usually up to a specified maximum amount. In addition, from time to time we also
provide protection to these parties against claims related to undiscovered liabilities, additional
product liability or environmental obligations. In our experience, claims made under such
indemnifications are rare and the associated estimated fair value of the liability is not material.

14. Restructuring and Asset Impairment

We initiated several restructuring plans in prior periods; the 2001 Plan, the 2002 Plan and the
2003 Plan (*‘Prior Plans”). Prior Plans were designed to reduce costs and expenses in order to
return the company to profitability. The workforce reduction portion of Prior Plans was
completed in the middle of 2005. The portion of Prior Plans related to the consolidation of excess
facilities is expected to be completed within the next five years.

59

2
8
o
<
@
£
L
vt
3
]
a
]
o
©
S
£
c
<t




AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The sale of our semiconductor products business was completed in December 2005, and we
announced our intention to spin-off in an initial public offering our semiconductor test solutions
business. As a consequence, we launched a new restructuring program (the “FY05 Plan’) to align
our workforce with our smaller organizational size. This new restructuring plan is comprised of
voluntary and involuntary terminations. As of October 31, 2005, the FY05 Plan resulted in the
reduction of or severance notification of approximately 1,500 employees. We estimate the
completion of the FYO5 Plan at the end of fiscal year 2006.

The implementation of our Prior Plans has reduced our workforce by approximately 16,900
people, including those in the semiconductor products business. As of October 31, 2005, the FY05
Plan resulted in reductions of an additional 600 people. Our plans to consolidate excess facilities
resulted in charges for lease termination fees and losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements.
We have exited approximately 116 production, support and sales facilities in the U.S., Korea,
Japan, U.K. and other countries, representing more than 4.6 million square feet, or about
24 percent of our worldwide property. We will continue to make lease payments on some of this
space over the next five years. We lease most of these buildings from third parties, and the
closures impacted all segments. In most cases, we are exiting administrative office buildings,
which house sales and administrative employees. However, a small number of production facilities
were closed as a result of our plans to consolidate manufacturing into fewer sites.

Actions for Prior Plans were focused on our businesses that were impacted severely by the
dot.com market implosion, and all segments except biocanalytical measurement required significant
restructuring activity. Actions have also been taken to reduce the costs associated with
infrastructure support services such as finance, information technology, and workplace services.
Cost reductions were initiated by moving manufacturing and some of our global shared services
operations sites to lower cost regions, reducing the number of properties, particularly sales and
administrative sites, and by reducing our workforce through involuntary terminations and
selected outsourcing of manufacturing and administrative functions. Our strategy is to move
towards a more variable operating cost structure.

We have executed all key actions for Prior Plans, although there may be changes in estimates
for the consolidation of excess facilities due to changes in market conditions from those originally
expected at the time the charges were recorded. Remaining restructuring actions include the
facilities portion of Prior Plans and workforce reductions and further facility consolidations as a
result of the new FY05 Plan. The following summaries of restructuring activity include the
semiconductor products business, which has been reflected as a discontinued operation.
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A summary of Prior Plans restructuring activity is shown in the table below:

Impairments
of Assets,
Consolidation Property,
Workforce of Excess Plant and
Reduction Facilities Equipment Total
(in millions)
Balance as of October 31, 2002.......... $ 85 $ 63 $ — $ 148
Totalcharge . . ...................... 282 37 53 372
Asset impairment . . .. .. ... .. .. ... ... — — (53) (63)
Cashpayments...................... (349 (29 - (378)
Balance as of October 31,2003.......... 18 71 - 89
Totalcharge . . ...................... 101 35 25 161
Asset impairment . . .. ........ ... ... .. - — (25) (25)
Cashpayments...................... 98) (40) - (138)
Balance as of October 31,2004.......... 21 66 - 87
Totalcharge .. ...................... 10 10 7 27
Asset impairment. . ......... ... .. ..., - — «)) (D
Cashpayments...................... 381 27N - (68)
Balance as of October 31,2005.......... $ - $ 49 $ — $ 49
The total cost of Prior Plans through October 31, 2005 was approximately $1.19 billion,
A summary of the FY05 Plan restructuring activity is shown in the table below:
Workforce
Reduction
(in millions)
Balance as of October 31,2004 . ... ... ... ... ... . ... $ -
Total charge . ... ... . . . . e 96
Cash payments . ... .. i e e e e (52)
Balance as of October 31, 2005 . . .. ... it e $ 44

Summary information for combined plans

The restructuring accrual for all plans, which totaled $93 million as of October 31, 2005 and
$87 million as of October 31, 2004, is recorded in other accrued liabilities and other long-term
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and represents estimated future cash outlays. Lease
payments are expected over the next five years. Workforce reduction payments, primarily
severance, are expected within a one-year period.
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A summary of the statement of operations impact of the charges resulting from all
restructuring plans is shown below.

Years Ended
October 31,
2005 2004 2003
(in millions)
Cost of products and services . . .. ................... $ 3 $47 $ 78
Research and development . ... ..................... 21 10 36
Selling, general and administrative .. ................. 56 78 180
Restructuring and asset impairment charges included in
continuing operations . ............. ... ... ... 113 135 294
Restructuring and asset impairment charges included in
discontinued operations ................. ... .. .. 10 26 78
Total restructuring and asset impairment charges........ $123 $161 $372

15. Retirement Plans and Post-retirement Benefits

General, Substantially all of our employees are covered under various defined benefit
and/or defined contribution plans. Additionally, we sponsor post-retirement health care benefits
and a death benefit under the Agilent Survivor Protection Plan for our eligible U.S. employees.

Retirement, deferred profit-sharing, and post-retirement plans. Costs included in income
(loss) from continuing operations were $112 million in 2005, $113 million in 2004 and
$151 million in 2003.

Agilent provides U.S. employees, who meet eligibility criteria under the retirement and
deferred profit-sharing plans, defined benefits which are generally based on an employee’s highest
five consecutive years’ average pay during the years of employment and on length of service. For
eligible service through October 31, 1993, the benefit payable under the Agilent Retirement Plan is
reduced by any amounts due to the eligible employee under our defined contribution Deferred
Profit-Sharing Plan (“DPSP’"), which was closed to new participants as of November 1993.

As of October 31, 2005 and 2004, the fair value of plan assets and the total projected benefit
obligation of the DPSP for U.S. Agilent Employees were $826 million and $847 million,
respectively.

Eligible employees outside the U.S. generally receive retirement benefits under various
retirement plans based upon factors such as years of service and employee compensation levels.
Eligibility is generally determined in accordance with local statutory requirements. Our U.S.
retirees who retired prior to January 1, 2005, are also covered by a lump sum death benefit that
is part of the Retiree Survivor’s Benefit Plan. In July 2004, the Retiree Survivor’s Benefit Plan was
revised to eliminate the $5,000 Retiree Survivor Benefit for all U.S. retirees who retire on or after
January 1, 2005.

401(k) defined contribution plan. Our U.S. eligible employees may participate in the Agilent
Technologies, Inc. 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan’’). Enrollment in the 401(k) Plan is automatic for
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employees who meet eligibility requirements unless they decline participation. Under the 401(k)
Plan, we provide matching contributions to employees up to a maximum of 4 percent of an
employee’s annual eligible compensation. The maximum contribution to the 401(k) Plan is

50 percent of an employee’s annual eligible compensation, subject to regulatory and plan
limitations. The 401(k) Plan expense included in income (loss) from continuing operations was
$27 million in 2005, $27 million in 2004 and $31 million in 2003.

Post-retirement medical benefit plans. In addition to receiving pension benefits, our U.S.
employees who meet retirement eligibility requirements as of their termination dates may
participate in our Non-Medicare Medical or Medicare Medical Plans (the “Post-retirement Medical
Plans”) under the Agilent Health Plan. Qur current U.S. employees could become eligible for these
benefits, and the existing benefit obligation relates primarily to those employees. Once
participating in a medical plan, retirees may choose from managed-care and indemnity options,
with their contributions dependent on the options chosen and length of service.

Plan amendments. In July 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
approved design changes to Agilent’s Post-retirement Medical Plans. One option available to
existing post-65 retirees is a new Medicare Supplement Plan in 2005. The Medicare Supplement
Plan supplements Medicare coverage by reimbursing Medicare Parts A and B deductibles at
100 percent after Medicare pays its portion of the retiree’s expenses. The Post-retirement Medical
Plan for a majority of future retirees was revised to establish retiree medical accounts for the
benefit of such retirees and will be funded with amounts as determined by Agilent.

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. In
December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
(*the Act”) was passed which expands Medicare to include an outpatient prescription drug
benefit beginning in 2006. In May 2004, the FASB issued FSP 106-2, ““Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of
2003”, which provides guidance on how companies should account for the impact of the Act on
its postretirement healthcare plans. Beginning in 2006, the federal government will provide a
non-taxable subsidy to employers that sponsor prescription drug benefits to retirees that are
“actuarially equivalent” to Medicare Part D benefits. We have determined that the prescription
drug benefits offered under our plans qualify for this subsidy. Effective fourth quarter 2004,
assuming that we will continue to offer these benefits, we have reflected the expected subsidy
according to the guidance in FSP 106-2 prospectively in our financial statements. The adoption of
FSP 106-2 had no material impact on our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or net
plan costs.
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Components of net periodic cost. For the years ended October 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, our
net pension and post-retirement benefit costs were comprised of:

. U.S. Post
Pensions Retirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefit Plans

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
(in millions)

Service cost — benefits earned during

theperiod ............. .. ... ... $63 $63 $70 $44 $41 $44 $ 6 $12 $ 13
Interest cost on benefit obligation . . . .. 40 39 44 58 52 46 29 32 30
Expected return on plan assets .. ..... (B0 (45) (39) (73) (65 (B3) (25) (25 (22)
Amortization and deferrals:

Actuarialloss. . ................. 2 3 14 31 33 33 9 6 1

Prior servicecost................ 1 1 1 - - - {13 B -
Netplancosts . ................... 56 61 90 60 61 70 6 20 22
Settlement loss and termination

benefits .. ..................... - - - — - 5 - - —

Total net plancosts ............ $56 $61 $90 $60 $61 $75 $ 6 $20 $ 22
Distribution of net plan costs:
Continuing operations ............ $48 $38 $60 $59 $60 $74 $ 5 $15 $17
Discontinued operations .......... 8 23 30 1 1 1 1 5 5
Total net plan costs . ........... $56 $61 $90 $60 $61 $75 3 6 $20 $22
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Funded status. As of October 31, 2005 and 2004, the funded status of the defined benefit
and post-retirement benefit plans was:

Non-U.S. U.S. Post
U.S. Defined Defined Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
(in millions)

Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value — beginning of year .............. $ 564 $488 $1,109 $ 928 $ 300 $ 290
Actual return on plan assets ............... 67 49 208 72 35 26
Employer contributions ................... 41 63 34 83 - -
Participants’ contributions . ... ............. — — 5 6 - -
Benefitspaid . ... ....................... CHONNCY) (29) 36) (22) (16)
Transfer from DPSP .. .................... 3 4 — - - -
Currency impact .......... ... ... - - 4 56 - -
Fair value —end ofyear .................... $628 $564 $1,283 $1,109 $ 313 $ 300 P
1]
Change in benefit obligation: S
Benefit obligation — beginning of year ........ $718 $660 $1,189 $1,095 $ 503 $ 539 P
ServiCe COSt . . v v vt e e 62 63 44 41 6 12 b
Interest COSt. . . oo v v 40 39 57 52 28 32 §_
Participants’ contributions . .. . ... .... ... ... - - 5 6 - — 2
Plan amendment ........................ - — a3 - - (123 =
Actuarial (gain)loss . . .................... 30 )] 217 37 28 59 2
Benefitspaid ........................... CYARNGi)) 29 36) (22) 16 ::
Transfer from DPSP . . .................... 3 4 - - - -
Impact of Medicare Act ................... - - - — (34) -
Currency impact ...............cvvun.n.. - - (49) 68 - -
Benefit obligation ~end of year . . ... ........ $ 746 $ 718 $1,421 $1,189 $ 509 §$ 503
Benefit obligation in excess of plan assets . ... ... $(118) $(154) $ (138) $ (80) $(196) $(203)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss .. ........ (30) 19 391 374 146 172
Unrecognized prior service cost {benefit) related to
planchanges .. ............ ... .. ... . .... 1 2 (18) (B) (128) (141
Net (accrued) prepaid costs . . . ............... $(147) $(133) $ 235 $ 289 $§(178) $(172)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet consist of:
Prepaid defined benefit plan costs ... .......... $ — $ —- $ 127 $ 290 $ - % -
Accrued defined benefit plancosts ............ (147) (133) (66) @Y) - —
Intangible assets .. ............ ... ... ...... - — 4 - - -
Additional minimum pension liability .......... - — 170 - - -
Accrued post-retirement benefits costs .. ....... - - - - (178) (172)
Net (accrued) prepaid costs . . . ............... $(147) $(133) $ 235 $ 289 $(178) $(172)
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Investment policies and strategies. Plan assets consist primarily of publicly-traded stocks
and bonds. In the U.S., our Agilent Retirement Plan and post-retirement benefit assets are
allocated approximately 80 percent to equities and approximately 20 percent to fixed income
investments. Our DPSP assets are allocated approximately 60 percent to equities and
approximately 40 percent to fixed income investments. Approximately 10 percent of our U.S.
equity portfolio consists of alternative investments, largely private equity partnerships. The
general investment objective for all our plan assets is to obtain the optimum rate of investment
return on the total investment portfolio consistent with the assumption of a reasonable level of
risk. The safety and protection of principal is a primary concern, and we believe that a
well-diversified investment portfolio will result in the highest attainable investment return
(income plus capital appreciation) with the lowest overall risk. Specific investment objectives for
the plans’ portfolios are to: maintain and enhance the purchasing power of the plans’ assets;
achieve investment returns consistent with the level of risk being taken; and earn performance
rates of return in accordance with the benchmarks adopted for each asset class. Outside the U.S,,
our assets are allocated from 45 to 70 percent to equities, from 25 to 55 percent to fixed income
investments, and from 0 to 5 percent to real estate investments, depending on the plan. All plans’
assets are broadly diversified. The actual allocations of plan assets are consistent with the target
allocations.

The table below presents the projected benefit obligation (“PB0"), accumulated benefit
obligation (“ABO") and fair value of plan assets in the aggregate for all plans, separately showing
those that were considered under-funded as of October 31, 2005 or 2004.

2005 2004

Benefit Fair Value of Benefit Fair Value of
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation Plan Assets

(in millions)
PB

PBO [0

U.S defined benefit plans where PBO exceeds the

fair value of planassets . . .. .............. $ 746 $ 628 $ 718 $ 564
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans where PBO

exceeds the fair value of plan assets ........ $1,118 $ 904 $ 929 $ 818
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans where fair value

of plan assets exceeds PBO ............... 303 379 260 291

Total . ... ... $1,421 $1,283 $1,189 $1,109
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2005 2004

Benefit Fair Value of Benefit Fair Value of
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation Plan Assets

(in millions)

ABO

U.S defined benefit plans where ABO exceeds the

fair value of plan assets . . . .. ............. $ 23 $ - $ 20 $ -
U.S defined benefit plans where the fair value of

plan assets exceeds ABO . ................ 517 628 461 564

Total . ....... ... e $ 540 628 $ 481 $ 564
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans where ABO

exceeds the fair value of plan assets ........ $ 852 787 $ - $8 -
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans where fair value

of plan assets exceeds ABO .. ............. 400 496 1,009 1,105

Total .......... . . $1,252 $1,283 $1,009 $1,105

Additional Minimum Liability. An additional minimum pension liability adjustment was
required in 2005 for three pension plans in Europe as the accumulated benefit obligation
exceeded the fair value of pension plan assets for those plans as of the measurement date. The
impact of the additional minimum liability on accumulated comprehensive loss was $170 million,
which was partially offset by $20 million applied to deferred tax assets, net of tax valuation
allowance. The large impact on accumulated comprehensive income was primarily a result of
prepaid costs that were reduced to zero in accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions”, for the impacted countries. No additional minimum pension liability was required
for 2004.

Contributions and estimated future benefit payments. During fiscal year 2006, we expect to
contribute $41 million to the U.S. defined benefit plans, $38 million to plans outside the U.S., and
zero to the Post-retirement Medical Plans. The following table presents expected future benefit
payments for the next 10 years:

Non-U.S. U.S. Post
U.S. Defined Defined Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

(in millions)

2006 ... $ 96 $ 26 $ 23
2007 . $ 62 $ 27 $ 25
2008 ... $ 58 $ 29 $ 27
2009 .. $ 61 $ 32 $ 28
2010 ... $ 65 $ 36 $ 29
2011-2015 .. .. $349 $230 $162

Assumptions. The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations and expense for
our defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans are presented in the table below. The
expected long-term return on assets below represents an estimate of long-term returns on
investment portfolios consisting of a mixture of equities, fixed income and alternative investments
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in proportion to the asset allocations of each of our plans. We consider long-term rates of return,
which are weighted based, on the asset classes (both historical and forecasted) in which we
expect our pension and post-retirement funds to be invested. Discount rates reflect the current
rate at which pension and post-retirement obligations could be settled based on the measurement
dates of the plans — October 31 for the U.S. plans and September 30 for the non-U.S. plans. Both
U.S. and non-U.S. rates are generally based on published rates for high-quality corporate bonds.
The range of assumptions that are used for non-U.S. defined benefit plans reflects the different
economic environments within various countries.

Assumptions used to calculate the net periodic cost in each year were as follows:

For years ended October 31,

2005 2004 2003

U.S. defined benefit plans:

Discount rate . . ... ... o i i ittt e 5.75% 6.25% 6.75%

Average increase in compensation levels ... ............. 4.0% 4.25% 5.25%

Expected long-term return on assets ................... 8.60% 8.76% 8.76%
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans:

Discountrate. . ...... ... .. .. . i 2.25-5.75% 2.0-5.6% 2.25-6.0%

Average increase in compensation levels . ... ............ 2.5-4.25% 2.5-4.0% 3.5-4.25%

Expected long-term return on assets . .................. 4.5-7.56% 5.0-7.5% 5.5-7.75%
U.S. post-retirement benefits plans:

Discountrate.. ... ... ... .. . . . . . i 5.75% 6.25% 6.75%

Expected long-term returnon assets . .................. 8.50% 8.756% 8.75%

Current medical cost trendrate . . . .................... 10.0% 10.0% 9.0%

Ultimate medical costtrend rate ...................... 5.0% 5.0% 5.56%

Medical cost trend rate decreases to ultimate rate in year . .. 2010 2009 2007

68



AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligation and the resulting additional minimum

pension liability were as follows:

As of the years ending

October 31,
2005 2004

U.S. defined benefit plans:

Discount rate. . . ... ... i e e 5.75% 5.756%

Average increase in compensation levels . ... ................... 4.0% 4.0%

Expected long-term return on assets ........... ..t 8.50% 8.50%
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans:

DiSCOUNt Tate . . . . .. ot e e e 2.25-5.0% 2.25-5.76%

Average increase in compensationlevels . ... ................... 0-4.0% 2.5-4.25%

Expected long-term returnt on assets . ... .. ... ..ot 4.5-7.0% 4.5-7.5%
U.S. post-retirement benefits plans:

DiSCOUNE FAtE . . . ot v vt it et et e st e et et e e e e 5.75% 5.75%

Expected long-term return on assets . ...... ..o vttt 8.50% 8.50%

Current medical costtrend rate . . .. .......................... 10.0% 10.0%

Ultimate medical cost trendrate ............ ... .. ..., 5.0% 5.0%

Medical cost trend rate decreases to ultimate rate inyear .......... 2011 2010

Assumed health care trend rates could have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
Post-retirement Medical Plans. A one percentage point change in the assumed health care cost

trend rates for the year ended October 31, 2005 would have the following effects:

One One
Percentage Percentage
Point Point
Increase Decrease
(in millions)
Effect on total service and interest cost components . . .. $5 $ @
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligations .......... $59 $(49)
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16. Other Accrued Liabilities and Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities at October 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

October 31,
2005 2004
Other accrued liabilities

ACCTUBA BXPENSES . . o . ottt i e $ 57 % 64
Restructuring . . .. ... ... . e e 71 47
Standard warranty accruals .. ............... . . ... ... ... 41 49
Lease guarantees ... ... .... ... .. — 13
Other . . ... . e e e _1_0 _3§

Total other accrued liabilities . ........................ $179  $208

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities .. ....... ... ... ... ... . ... . ... $131 $131
Long-term deferred revenue and extended warranty.......... 76 57
Deferred compensation. .. ............ ... . . .. 54 46
Minority interest . ... ... ... . . . ... e 34 28
Long-term restructuring accrual . .. ...................... 22 40
Standard warranty accruals . .. ....... .. .. ... o e 5 10
Other .. ... e e 29 38

Total other long-term liabilities . ... .................... $351  $350

Our accrued vacation balance totaled $164 million and $178 million at October 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively, and is recorded in employee compensation and benefits in the consolidated
balance sheet.

17. Senior Convertible Debentures

In August 2005, we announced a full redemption of $1.15 billion of our outstanding
convertible debentures. The redemption date was September 9, 2005 with a redemption price of
$1,000 per $1,000 principal amount of the debentures, plus accrued interest.

Prior to the redemption date, debt holders of approximately $466 million of the principal
amount of the debentures converted their shares into approximately 14.5 million shares of Agilent
common stock at a conversion price of $32.22. Also, prior to the redemption date, Agilent
repurchased $332 million of its convertible debentures in a series of open-market purchases. The
remaining $352 million of outstanding debentures were redeemed for cash on the redemption
date. Total cash paid was $692 million, of which $684 million was from the purchase and
redemption of convertible debentures and $8 million was from accrued interest and premiums
related to the open market purchases. A loss of $7 million was recorded on these transactions,
resulting from the premium paid to debt holders as well as the expensing of unamortized issuance
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costs. Agilent recorded the loss on repurchases as a component of other income and expense. As
of October 31, 2005, no convertible debentures remain outstanding,

18. Stock Repurchase Program

During the fourth quarter of 2005, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase
program of up to $4.466 billion of our common stock. Under the program, during the fourth
quarter of 2005, we repurchased 8.9 million shares for $290 million. Repurchased shares and
related costs have been accounted for as treasury shares using the cost method. See Note 24,
“Subsequent Events”, for further discussion of the stock repurchase program.

19. Commitments

Operating Lease Commitments: We lease certain real and personal property from unrelated
third parties under non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under leases
at Qctober 31, 2005 were $90 million for 2006, $71 million for 2007, $53 million for 2008,
$33 million for 2009, $22 million for 2010 and $30 million thereafter. Future minimum sublease
income under leases at October 31, 2005 was $12 million for 2006, $10 million for 2007,
$8 million for 2008, $7 million for 2009 and $5 million for 2010. Certain leases require us to pay
property taxes, insurance and routine maintenance, and include escalation clauses. Rent expense
was $90 million in 2005, $116 million in 2004 and $126 million in 2003.

As of October 31, 2005, the portion of the aforementioned future minimum lease payments
which relate to our discontinued operation was $6 million for 2006, $6 million for 2007,
$5 million for 2008, $3 million for 2009, $2 million for 2010, and $1 million thereafter. Also the
portion of the aforementioned rent expense recorded in discontinued operations was $21 million
in 2005, $23 million in 2004 and $26 million in 2003.

.Z_’
2
5]
c
«
£
(e
Gt
£
o
o
)
(-2
©
S
£
c
<<

In the fourth quarter of 2005, we entered into a line of credit for $200 million. The line of
credit was not utilized and expired in December 2005.

20. Contingencies

We are involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including patent,
commercial and environmental matters. There are no matters pending that we expect to be
material in relation to our business, consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.
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21. Other Income and Expense

The following table presents the components of other income (expense), net for the years
ended October 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005:

Years Ended
October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in millions)

INterest INMCOME . . o . vttt et e it it e et e e e e e $72 $27 $26
INnterest @XPeNSE . . ot i e e e e e e e @7n (36) (@36)
Minority interest 108s . . . . . . .. . e e e (10) (11 8)
Rental income .. ... .. .. e e e e e 29 25 18
Investment impairments . . . ... ... i i e e (18) (15) (15)
Investmient gains . ... ... . .t ittt e e e e 7 - -
Government Srants . . .. .. ... e e 7 10 7
Income from 1eases . . . . ... o i it i e e e - 6 7
Gainonsale of assets . .. ... .. . e e e e 6 — 5
Currency gains (108S€S), el . . . . . . i i e e e 5 2 5
Loss on redemption of debt and amortization of issuance costs ........... ) — -
Other, et . . . ... e e 9 16 15
Other income (EXPense), MEL . . . . v v v v vt vttt et et et i $73 $24 $24

Interest income is derived principally from the investment of our surplus cash balances in
bank time deposits and other money market instruments. Interest expense was incurred
principally on our senior convertible debentures that were redeemed in September 2005, We
incurred investment impairment charges primarily to recognize the other than temporary
impairment of investments that we hold on a cost basis.

22. Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Affiliate (including Gain) — Lumileds

Lumileds Lighting International, B.V. (“Lumileds’) is a global joint venture between Agilent
and Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (“Philips”). Lumileds manufactures high-power light
emitting diodes and solid-state lighting solutions. Agilent’s ownership interest in Lumileds was
approximately 47 percent as of October 31, 2005. Our equity in the net income of our
unconsolidated affiliate for the three years ended October 31, 2005 was $34 million, $29 million
and $9 million. In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we sold 1 percent of our interest in
Lumileds to Philips for a gain of $8 million, which is included in equity in net income of
unconsolidated affiliate (including gain) — Lumileds in our consolidated statement of operations.
In November 2005, we sold our ownership interest in Lumileds, and received payment for
outstanding debt, see Note 24, “Subsequent Events”. Beginning in 2005, a new subtotal is being
presented in the consolidated statement of operations: Income (loss) from continuing operations
before taxes and equity income. Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliate (including gain) —
Lumileds is now being presented below the provision for income taxes in a separate caption. In
accordance with $enerally accepted accounting principles the equity in net income item has
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consistently been presented net of income taxes. This presentation has also been adopted for
prior periods.

The following tables present the condensed financial data of Lumileds (in millions):

Year Ended
October 31,

2005 2004 2003

Summary of Operations:

23. Segment Information

Net TEVENUE . . vttt it et it et e e e e $319 $280 $195
Costs and exXpenses ... ...ttt $256 $219 $169
Net INCOME . . . vt ot e e e e e $61 $62 §$ 22
As of
2005 2004
Summary Balance Sheet: w
CUITENE ASSELS .\ o oo vttt ettt e et e e $104 $122 '3
TOtAl ASSEES .« .+ o v e e e e e e e e $236 $224 S
Current liabilities . ....... ... ... $ 54 $ 84 '-E
Non-current liabilities . .. ...... ... . . ... $ 90 $104 ':__SL
Total liabilities and equity . .. ... .. ..t $236 $224 &
K]
a
| o
-
<L

Description of segments. We are a measurement company, providing core bio-analytical and
electronic measurement solutions to the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical
analysis industries. During the second half of 2005, we reorganized our business operations into
three major businesses — bio-analytical measurement, electronic measurement, and semiconductor
test solutions — each of which comprises a reportable segment. As part of the reorganization, we
transferred two divisions from our semiconductor test solutions segment formerly known as
automated test to electronic measurement segment. The segments were determined based
primarily on how the chief operating decision maker views and evaluates our operations. Other
factors, including customer base, homogeneity of products, technology and delivery channels, were
also considered in determining our reportable segments.

Our three reportable segments are as follows:

* bio-analytical measurement business provides application-focused solutions that include
instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify, quantify
and analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products. Our seven
key product categories include microarrays, microfluidics, gas chromatography, liquid
chromatography, mass spectrometry, software and informatics, and related consumables,
reagents and services;

¢ electronic measurement business provides standard and customized electronic
measurement instruments and systems, monitoring, management and optimization tools for
communications networks and services, software design tools and related services that are
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used in the design, development, manufacture, installation, deployment and operation of
electronics equipment and communications networks and services. Related services include
start-up assistance, instrument productivity and application services and instrument
calibration and repair. We also offer customization, consulting and optimization services
throughout the customer’s product lifecycle;

¢ semiconductor test solutions business delivers technologies and solutions for companies
who design, manufacture and test systems-on-a-chip (*‘SOCs"), systems-in-a-package
(“SIPs”) and memory semiconductor devices. Qur systems are used to test a wide range of
devices, from the extremely price-sensitive to the most complex and high-performance.

Segment revenue and profit. The accounting policies used to derive reportable segment
results are generally the same as those described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies”.

A significant portion of the segments’ expenses arise from shared services and infrastructure
that we have historically provided to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to
efficiently use resources. These expenses, collectively called corporate charges, include costs of
centralized research and development, legal, accounting, employee benefits, real estate, insurance
services, information technology services, treasury and other corporate infrastructure expenses.
Charges are allocated to the segments, and the allocations have been determined on a basis that
we considered to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits
received by the segments. Corporate charges previously allocated to our semiconductor products
business, but not classified within discontinued operations, were not reallocated to our other
segments, These charges are presented below as a component of the reconciliation between the
segments’ income (loss) from operations and Agilent’'s income (loss) from continuing operations
and are classified as unallocated semiconductor products business corporate charges.

The following tables reflect the results of our reportable segments under our management
reporting system. These results are not necessarily a depiction that is in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The performance of each segment is measured
based on several metrics, including income (loss) from operations. These results are used, in part,
by the chief operating decision maker in evaluating the performance of, and in allocating
resources to, each of the segments.

The profitability of each of the segments is measured after excluding amortization of goodwill,
amortization and impairment of other intangibles, restructuring and asset impairment charges,
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investment gains and losses, interest income, interest expense and other items as noted in the
reconciliation below.

Bio-analytical Electronic Semiconductor Total
Measurement Measurement Test Solutions Segments

(in millions)

Year ended October 31, 2005:

Total netrevenue . ................... $1,421 $3,265 $453 $5,139

Income (loss) from operations .......... $ 197 $ 360 $09D $ 466

Depreciation expense .. ............... $ 37 $ 98 $ 14 $ 149
Year ended October 31, 2004:

Total netrevenue . . .................. $1,333 $3,225 $602 $5,160

Income from operations . .............. $ 186 $ 279 $ 12 $ 477

Depreciation expense .. ............... $ 38 $ 107 $ 27 $ 172
Year ended October 31, 2003:

Total net revenue .. .................. $1,186 $2,746 $538 $4,470

Income (loss) from operations .......... $ 141 $ (336) $ (8) $ (20D

Depreciation expense . .. .............. $ 35 $ 132 $ 26 $ 193

In 2003, revenue classified as discontinued operations includes an adjustment of $2 million
that was previously allocated to our semiconductor products business segment. As a result, total
reportable segment revenues are $2 million higher than total Agilent net revenue in that period.

The following table reconciles segment results to Agilent’s total enterprise results from
continuing operations before taxes:

Years Ended
October 31,

2005 2004 2003
(in millions)

Total reportable segments’ income (loss) from operations .............. $466 $477 $(201)
Amortization and impairment of intangibles ........................ (13 AamnH (562)
Restructuring and asset impairment. . .. .......... .. ., (110) (135) (294)
Retirement plans net curtailment and settlement (loss) gain ............ — - (5)
Other income (eXpense), Nt . . .. ... ittt ittt e 73 24 24
Unallocated semiconductor products business corporate charges ......... (132) (123) (175)
Unallocated corporate charges and other .. .. .......... ... ... .. ..., @30 B7 7
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes, as reported .. ... .. $254 $169 $(696)

Restructuring and asset impairment for the year ended October 31, 2005 does not include
$3 million of charges that were included in the total reportable segments’ income from operations.

Magor customers. No customer represented 10 percent or more of our total net revenue in
2005, 2004 or 2003.
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Unallocated assets primarily consist of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments,
accumulated amortization of goodwill and other intangibles, the valuation allowance relating to
deferred tax assets and other assets. In 2005, we refined the methodology for allocating corporate
assets, the largest component of which relates to deferred tax assets before the valuation
adjustment. The following table reflects the updated measure of segment assets, capital
expenditures and investments in equity-method investees directly managed by each segment. All
historical amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Bio-analytical

Electronic

Semiconductor

Total

Measurement Measurement Test System Segments
(in millions)
As of October 31, 2005:
ASSEES ... $689 $2,007 $312 $3,008
Capital expenditures ................. $ 41 $ 68 $ 16 $ 125
Investments in and advances to equity-
method investees . ................. $ — $ 20 $ - $ 20
As of October 31, 2004:
ASSEES ... $732 $2,513 $349 $3,5694
Capital expenditures ................. $ 14 $ 48 $ 9 $ 71
Investments in and advances to equity-
method investees .................. $ - $ 19 3 - $ 19
The following table reconciles segment assets to Agilent’s total assets:
October 31,
2005 2004
(in millions)
Total reportable segments’ assets . ...................... $3,008 $3,594
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments.......... 2,251 2,315
Total assets of discontinued operations .................. 842 902
Prepaid expenses .. .. ... .. e 242 158
Cost method investments . ............................ 129 122
Long-term and other receivables . .. ..................... 201 200
Other, including valuation allowance .................... 78 (147
Total @SSetsS . . .o vt e $6,751 $7,144

Geographic Information

The following table presents summarized information for net revenue and long-lived assets by
geographic region for continuing operations. Long lived assets consist of property, plant, and
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equipment, long-term receivables and other long-term assets excluding intangible assets. The rest
of the world primarily consists of Southeast Asia and Europe.

Rest of
United the
States Japan World Total

(in millions)

Net revenue:

Year ended October 31,2005................... $1,790 $669 $2,680 $5,139

Year ended October 31,2004 . .................. $1,754 $688 $2,718 $5,160

Year ended October 31,2003 .. ................. $1,705 $558 $2,205 $4,468
Long-lived assets:

October 31,2005 .. .. ... ... .. i, $ 730 $249 $ 481 $1,460

October 31,2004 .. ... ... ... .. . . i, $ 775 $281 $ 634 $1,690

24. Subsequent Events
Semiconductor Products Business Asset Purchase Agreement

In August 2005, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Avago, as amended by
Amendment No. 1 (the “APA’) providing for the sale of our semiconductor products business.
Under the terms of the APA, the purchase price payable for our semiconductor products business
was $2.66 billion, subject to adjustment based on a determination of Adjusted EBITDA and
working capital, each calculated in accordance with the terms of the APA.

In December 2005, we completed the sale of substantially all the assets of our semiconductor
products business to Avago. Under the terms of the APA, Agilent received $2.579 billion in cash
proceeds, subject to further adjustment based on transfer taxes, a final determination of closing
working capital and other items as defined in the APA.
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The following table shows the components of the estimated gain from sale of discontinued
operations, net of taxes:

(in millions)

Proceeds, net of working capital adjustments .. ................ $2,579
Book value of assets and liabilities disposed of . . .. ... .......... (724)
Costs of disposition . ... ........ . . ... . . i (50)
Gainon sale before taxes . . ....... ... it 1,805
Income taxes . ... ... e )]
Gain from sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes .......... $1,797

Lumileds Share Purchase Agreement

On November 28, 2005, we completed the sale of our stake in Lumileds Lighting International,
B.V. (*Lumileds’) to Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (“Philips”). Lumileds was a global joint
venture between Agilent and Philips under a Second Amended and Restated Joint Venture
Agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement’’), dated as of November 29, 2004, between Agilent and
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Philips. Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, upon closure of the sale transaction, the Joint
Venture Agreement and the ancillary agreements have been terminated. The purchase price paid
by Philips under the Share Purchase Agreement was $948.5 million. In addition, Lumileds has
repaid $51 million of outstanding principal debt and accrued interest due to us as of the date of
sale under the Credit Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, by and among Lumileds, Philips,
Agilent and Agilent Technologies Coordination Center S.C./C.V.

The following table shows the components of the estimated gain from sale of Lumileds, net of
taxes:

(in millions)

Proceeds . .. i e $949
Net book value of investment . . . ........ ... ... ... ... .. ...... (48)
Gain on sale before taxes . .. ... ... . . ... .. . . . 901

INCoOmMeE taXeS . @ vt e e e e e e

Gain from sale of Lumileds, netof taxes. .. ................... $901

Stock repurchase program

Subsequent to year end in November 2005, we initiated a self-tender offer for an additional
73 million shares under the authorized stock repurchase program with the right to repurchase up
to an additional 2 percent of our outstanding shares as of October 31, 2005. In December 2005,
the tender offer expired and we agreed to accept for payment 83 million shares at a purchase
price of $36 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $3 billion. To date we have
repurchased approximately 92 million shares for $3.3 billion leaving approximately $1.2 billion
remaining authorized under the stock repurchase program.

Term Facility

In December 2005, we drew down $700 million on a $1 billion senior secured term borrowing
facility to help finance our share repurchase program, including the repurchase for cash of
approximately 83 million shares of our common stock pursuant to the modified “Dutch Auction”
self-tender offer. We entered into the facility in December 2005 and it matures no later than
April 2006. The term facility allows us to borrow at an interest rate equal to one-month LIBOR
plus 30 basis points per annum, or for shorter LIBOR periods if we and the lenders so agree.
Prior to its final maturity, we expect to replace the term facility with permanent financing. As a
condition of the term facility, we will segregate investments equal to 105.25 percent of the
principal borrowed as restricted assets on our balance sheet.
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QUARTERLY SUMMARY

2005
Netrevenue . ............couuevuennn
Grossprofit .......................
Income from operations . . .............
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .
Income from discontinued operations, net
oftax ........ ...
Netincome ............ ... ...

Net income per share — Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .
Income from discontinued operations . . .

Netincome .............. .. c0....

Net income per share — Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations . . .

Net income (loss) . . ....... ... ... ...

Weighted average shares used in computing
net Income per share:
Basic......... . ... o o
Diluted .............. ... ... ...

Range of stock pricesson NYSE. . ... ... ..

2004
Netrevenue ...............ccovuennn
Gross profit ............. ... . ......
Income from operations. . .............
Income from continuing operations . ... ..
Income from discontinued operations, net
oftax ....... ... ..l
Netincome .............. . ... ...

Net income per share — Basic:
Income from continuing operations . . . . .
Income from discontinued operations . . .

Netincome ......................

Net income per share — Diluted:
Income from continuing operations . . . . .
Income from discontinuing operations. . .

Netincome ......................

Weighted average shares used in computing
net Income per share:
Basic.......... ... ... .
Diluted ......... ... .. .c.......

Range of stock priceson NYSE. . .. .. ....

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31
(in millions, except per share data)
681C)) )@ 3® 1))

$ 1,212 § 1,278 $ 1,242 § 1,407

591 640 596 695

38 42 35 66
51 53 54 an

52 42 50 42

$ 103 3% 95 $ 104 $ 25
$ 0.10 § 011 $ 011 $ 0.03)

0.11 0.08 0.10 0.08

$ 021 § 0.19 § 021 ¢ 0.05
$ 0.10 § 0.11 § 010 § (0.03)

0.11 0.08 0.10 0.08

$ 021 $ 019 $ 020 § 0.05

491 491 494 500

496 496 499 512

$21.44-25.77 $20.40-24.75 $20.97-26.42 $25.30-34.03

Restated
&® ) (MO &

$ 1,174 § 1,304 § 1,346 § 1,336

551 602 628 656

4 15 49 77

3 17 49 58

68 87 51 36

$ 71 % 104 $ 100 $ 94

3 0.01 § 0.04 § 0.10 3§ 0.12

0.14 0.17 0.11 0.07

$ 0.156 § 021 § 021 3§ 0.19

$ 001 3 0.03 § 0.10 $ 0.12

0.14 0.18 0.10 0.07

$ 015 $ 021 $ 020 $ 0.19

480 481 485 486

490 495 491 490

$24.97-38.80 $26.91-37.62 $22.63-29.68 $19.51-25.31
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Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $9 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $5 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $35 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $64 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $32 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $19 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $41 million primarily relating
to severance expenses

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $43 million primarily relating
to severance expenses. The fourth quarter of 2004 includes a restatement for tax provision,
see Note 1A, “Restatement of 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements”, to our consolidated
financial statements for more information.

All historical amounts have been restated for discontinued operations
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RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Our operating results and financial condition could be harmed if the markets into which we
sell our products decline or do not grow as anticipated.

Visibility into our markets is limited. Our quarterly sales and operating results are highly
dependent on the volume and timing of orders received during the quarter, which are difficult to
forecast. In addition, our revenues and earnings forecast for future quarters are often based on
the expected seasonality or cyclicality of our markets. However, the markets we serve do not
always experience the seasonality or cyclicality that we expect. Any decline in our customers’
markets or in general economic conditions would likely result in a reduction in demand for our
products and services. For example, if the Asia Pacific market does not grow as anticipated, our
results could suffer. In addition, we have not yet completed our proposed spin-off of our SOC and
memory test businesses, which are directly influenced by changes in the semiconductor market.
Since the broader semiconductor market is one of the drivers for our electronic measurement
business, a continued decrease in the semiconductor market could harm our electronic
measurement business. Also, if our customers’ markets decline, we may not be able to collect on
outstanding amounts due to us. Such decline could harm our consolidated financial position,
results of operations, cash flows and stock price, and could limit our ability to sustain
profitability. Also, in such an environment, pricing pressures could intensify. Since a significant
portion of our operating expenses is relatively fixed in nature due to sales, research and
development and manufacturing costs, if we were unable to respond quickly enough these pricing
pressures could further reduce our gross margins. Finally, we may be required to secure
additional debt or equity financing at some time in the future, and we cannot assure you that
such financing will be available on acceptable terms when required. If our corporate credit rating

is downgraded, we could be required to pay a higher interest rate for future borrowing needs and
we may have stricter terms.

The actions we are taking to focus our organization on our core businesses may cause

disruption and increase expenses, which may affect our results of operations or financial
condition.

The spin-off of our SOC and memory test businesses and the divestiture of our semiconductor
products business, even after its completion, could involve a number of risks, including:

* the diversion of the attention of management and other key personnel; and

* restructuring, inventory and other charges which may affect our results of operations.

There can be no assurance that our completed sale of the semiconductor products business or
our spin-off of the SOC and memory test businesses would cause us to achieve our goal of
successfully focusing on our core businesses. Also, there can there be no assurance that this
strategic realignment of the business will be beneficial to our business or financial condition. Even
assuming the strategic realignment would be beneficial, we may fail to properly implement the
spin-off, which might adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
Additionally, our decision to divest the semiconductor products business and to spin-off the SOC
and memory test businesses may result in the recording of special charges, such as inventory,
goodwill and intangible-asset impairments, workforce reduction costs, pension and stock option
costs, charges relating to consolidation of excess facilities, or claims from third parties who were
resellers or users of discontinued products.

Prior to its divestiture, our semiconductor products business was a significant portion of our

consolidated business, but its financial results are no longer included in our consolidated financial
results on a continuing operations basis. Qur semiconductor test business represents a significant
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portion of our consolidated business, but we will not report the financial results of this business,
including net revenues and net income, after it is spun off. The result of omitting the
semiconductor products business from our continuing operations has caused our net revenues to
decline and the result of omitting our semiconductor test business from our consolidated financial
statements could cause our net revenues to decline. Accordingly, our historical consolidated
financial results may not necessarily reflect our future financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. In addition, as a result of a spin-off or divestiture, our stock price may fluctuate.

We will retain contingent liabilities from the divestiture of our semiconductor products
business. We agreed to retain responsibility for specified contingent liabilities related to these
businesses, including desighated tax and environmental liabilities and potential claims by Avago
Technologies Ltd. (formerly known as Argos Acquisition Pte. Ltd.) (“Avago’) that the
representations and warranties we made about the businesses were inaccurate. The resolution of
these contingencies may have a material adverse effect on our continuing results of operations or
financial condition.

We may not be successful in our efforts to maintain a reduced cost structure, and the
actions that we take in order to reduce costs could have long-term adverse effects on our
business.

We have taken, and continue to take, various actions to transition our company to a reduced
cost structure. In conjunction with the divestiture of our semiconductor products business and
proposed spin-off of our SOC and memory test businesses, we recently announced the
restructuring of our global infrastructure organization to reduce costs by $450 million.

There are several risks inherent in our efforts to maintain a reduced cost structure. These
include the risks that we will not be able to reduce expenditures quickly enough and hold them at
a level necessary to sustain or increase profitability and that we may have to undertake further
restructuring initiatives that would entail additional charges. For example, our expenses were
higher than anticipated during the second quarter of 2004, due to increases in demand for items
like travel, training, consultants, manufacturing and operating supplies, which adversely affected
our performance. If our current plan to reduce costs leads to similar increases in demand we
could face the same situation in the future. As we transform our infrastructure, we expect to face
ongoing pressure to control expenses. If we are not able to hold down expenses we may have to
further reduce our workforce. There is also the risk that cost-cutting initiatives will impair our
ability to effectively develop and market products, to remain competitive in the industries in
which we compete and to operate effectively. Each of the above measures could have long-term
effects on our business by reducing our pool of technical talent, decreasing or slowing
improvements in our products, making it more difficult for us to respond to customers, limiting
our ability to increase production quickly if and when the demand for our products increases and
limiting our ability to hire and retain key personnel. These circumstances could cause our income
to be lower than it otherwise might be, which would adversely affect our stock price.

If we do not introduce successful new products and services in a timely manner, our
products and services will become obsolete, and our operating results will suffer.

We generally sell our products in industries that are characterized by rapid technological
changes, frequent new product and service introductions and changing industry standards. In
addition, many of the markets in which we operate are seasonal and cyclical. Without the timely
introduction of new products, services and enhancements, our products and services will become
technologically obsolete over time, in which case our revenue and operating results would suffer.
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The success of our new products and services will depend on several factors, including our ability
to:

properly identify customer needs;

* innovate and develop new technologies, services and applications;

* successfully commercialize new technologies in a timely manner;

* manufacture and deliver our products in sufficient volumes on time;
* differentiate our offerings from our competitors’ offerings;

* price our products competitively;

* anticipate our competitors’ development of new products, services or technological
innovations; and

¢ control product quality in our manufacturing process.

Dependence on contract manufacturing and outsourcing other portions of our supply chain
may adversely affect our ability to bring products to market and damage our reputation.
Dependence on outsourced information technology functions may impair our ability to
operate effectively.

As part of our efforts to streamline operations and to cut costs, we have been outsourcing
and will continue to evaluate additional outsourcing. If our contract manufacturers or other
outsourcers fail to perform their obligations in a timely manner or at satisfactory quality levels,
our ability to bring products to market and our reputation could suffer. For example, during a
market upturn, our contract manufacturers may be unable to meet our demand requirements,
which may preclude us from fulfilling our customers’ orders on a timely basis. The ability of these
manufacturers to perform is largely outside of our control. In addition, we outsourced significant
portions of our information technology (“IT"") function. Since IT is critical to our operations, any
failure to perform on the part of the IT providers could impair our ability to operate effectively.
In addition to the risks outlined above, problems with manufacturing or IT outsourcing could
result in lJower revenues, and impact our results of operations and our stock price. Much of our
outsourcing takes place in developing countries, and as a result may be subject to geopolitical
uncertainty.

Future changes in financial accounting standards may adversely affect our reported results
of operations.

A change in accounting standards can have a significant effect on our reported results. New
accounting pronouncements and varying interpretations of accounting pronouncements have
occurred and may occur in the future. These new accounting pronouncements may adversely
affect our reported financial results.

For example, under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share Based
Payment”’ (“SFAS No. 123R"), we will be required to account for our stock-based awards as a
compensation expense and our net income and net income per share will be significantly reduced.
Currently, we record compensation expense only in connection with option grants that have an
exercise price below fair market value. For option grants that have an exercise price at fair
market value, we calculate compensation expense and disclose their impact on net income (loss)
and net income (loss) per share, as well as the impact of all stock-based compensation expense in
a footnote to the consolidated financial statements. SFAS No. 123R requires us to adopt the new
accounting provisions beginning in our first quarter of 2006, and will require us to expense stock-
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based awards, including shares issued under our employee stock purchase plan, stock options,
restricted stock and stock appreciation rights, as compensation cost.

Failure to adjust our purchases due to changing market conditions or failure to estimate
our customers’ demand could adversely affect our income.

Our income could be harmed if we are unable to adjust our purchases to market fluctuations,
including those caused by the seasonal or cyclical nature of the markets in which we operate. The
sale of our products and services are dependent, to a large degree, on customers whose industries
are subject to seasonal or cyclical trends in the demand for their products. For example, the
consumer electronics market is particularly volatile, making demand difficult to anticipate. During
a market upturn, we may not be able to purchase sufficient supplies or components to meet
increasing product demand, which could materially affect our results. In addition, some of the
parts that require custom design are not readily available from alternate suppliers due to their
unique design or the length of time necessary for design work. Should a supplier cease
manufacturing such a component, we would be forced to reengineer our product. In addition to
discontinuing parts, suppliers may also extend lead times, limit supplies or increase prices due to
capacity constraints or other factors. In order to secure components for the production of
products, we may continue to enter into non-cancelable purchase commitments with vendors, or
at times make advance payments to suppliers, which could impact our ability to adjust our
inventory to declining market demands. Prior commitments of this type have resulted in an excess
of parts when demand for our communications, semiconductor and electronics products has
decreased. If demand for our products is less than we expect, we may experience additional
excess and obsolete inventories and be forced to incur additional charges.

Our income may suffer if our manufacturing capacity does not match our demand.

Because we cannot immediately adapt our production capacity and related cost structures to
rapidly changing market conditions, when demand does not meet our expectations, our
manufacturing capacity will likely exceed our production requirements. If, during a general
market upturn or an upturn in one of our segments, we cannot increase our manufacturing
capacity to meet product demand, we will not be able to fulfill orders in a timely manner. This
inability could materially and adversely limit our ability to improve our results. By contrast, if
during an economic downturn we had excess manufacturing capacity, then our fixed costs
associated with excess manufacturing capacity would adversely affect our income.

Economic, political and other risks associated with international sales and operations
could adversely affect our results of operations.

Because we sell our products worldwide, our business is subject to risks associated with
doing business internationally. We anticipate that revenue from international operations will
continue to represent a majority of our total revenue. In addition, many of our employees,
contract manufacturers, suppliers, job functions and manufacturing facilities are increasingly
located outside the U.S. Accordingly, our future results could be harmed by a variety of factors,
including:

* interruption to transportation flows for delivery of parts to us and finished goods to our
customers;

* changes in foreign currency exchange rates;
* changes in a specific country’s or region’s political, economic or other conditions;
* trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;

* negative consequences from changes in tax laws;
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+ difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations;
+ differing labor regulations;

+ differing protection of intellectual property;

* unexpected changes in regulatory requirements; and

* geopolitical turmoil, including terrorism and war.

We centralized most of our accounting processes to two locations: Malaysia and India. These
processes include general accounting, cost accounting, accounts payable and accounts receivables
functions. If conditions change in those countries, it may adversely affect operations, including
impairing our ability to pay our suppliers and collect our receivables. Our results of operations, as
well as our liquidity, may be adversely affected and possible delays may occur in reporting
financial results.

Our business will suffer if we are not able to retain and hire key personnel.

Our future success depends partly on the continued service of our key research, engineering,
sales, marketing, manufacturing, executive and administrative personnel. If we fail to retain and
hire a sufficient number of these personnel, we will not be able to maintain or expand our
business. The markets in which we operate are very dynamic, and our businesses continue to
respond with reorganizations, workforce reductions and site closures. We believe our pay levels
are very competitive within the regions that we operate. However, there is also intense
competition for certain highly technical specialties in geographic areas where we continue to
recruit, and it may become more difficult to retain our key employees.

Our acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures may result in financial
results that are different than expected.

In the normal course of business, we frequently engage in discussions with third parties
relating to possible acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures, and generally
expect to complete several transactions per year. As a result of such transactions, our financial
results may differ from the investment community’s expectations in a given quarter, or over the
long term. In addition, acquisitions and strategic alliances may require us to integrate a different
company culture, management team and business infrastructure. We may have difficulty
developing, manufacturing and marketing the products of a newly acquired company in a way
that enhances the performance of our combined businesses or product lines to realize the value
from expected synergies. Depending on the size and complexity of an acquisition, our successful
integration of the entity depends on a variety of factors, including:

¢+ the retention of key employees;
* the management of facilities and employees in different geographic areas;
* the retention of key customers;

¢ the compatibility of our sales programs and facilities within those of the acquired company;
and

* the compatibility of our existing infrastructure with that of an acquired company.

A successful divestiture depends on various factors, including our ability to:

» effectively transfer liabilities, contracts, facilities and employees to the purchaser;
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* identify and separate the intellectual property to be divested from the intellectual property
that we wish to keep; and

¢ reduce fixed costs previously associated with the divested assets or business.

Future impairment of the value of purchased assets and goodwill could have a significant
negative impact on our future operating results.

In addition, if customers of the divested business do not receive the same level of service
from the new owners, this may adversely affect our other businesses to the extent that these
customers also purchase other Agilent products. All of these efforts require varying levels of
management resources, which may divert our attention from other business operations, Further, if
market conditions or other factors lead us to change our strategic direction, we may not realize
the expected value from such transactions. If we do not realize the expected benefits or synergies
of such transactions, our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows and
stock price could be negatively impacted.

Environmental contamination from past operations could subject us to unreimbursed costs
and could harm on-site operations and the future use and value of the properties involved
and environmental contamination caused by ongoing operations could subject us to
substantial liabilities in the future.

Some of our properties are undergoing remediation by Hewlett-Packard (‘HP”) for subsurface
contaminations that were known at the time of our separation from HP. HP has agreed to retain
the liability for this subsurface contamination, perform the required remediation and indemnify
us with respect to claims arising out of that contamination. The determination of the existence
and cost of any additional contamination caused by us could involve costly and time-consuming
negotiations and litigation. In addition, HP will have access to our properties to perform
remediation. While HP has agreed to minimize interference with on-site operations at those
properties, remediation activities and subsurface contamination may require us to incur
unreimbursed costs and could harm on-site operations and the future use and value of the
properties. We cannot be sure that HP will continue to fulfill its indemnification or remediation
obligations.

We have agreed to indemnify HP for any liability associated with contamination from past
operations at all other properties transferred from HP to us other than those properties currently
undergoing remediation by HP. While we are not aware of any material liabilities associated with
any potential subsurface contamination at any of those properties, subsurface contamination may
exist, and we may be exposed to material liability as a result of the existence of that
contamination.

Our semiconductor and other manufacturing processes involve the use of substances
regulated under various international, federal, state and local laws governing the environment. We
may still be subject to liabilities for environmental contamination, and these liabilities may be
substantial. Although our policy is to apply strict standards for environmental protection at our
sites inside and outside the U.S., even if the sites outside the U.S. are not subject to regulations
imposed by foreign governments, we may not be aware of all conditions that could subject us to
liability.

86



Our customers and we are subject to various governmental regulations, compliance with
which may cause us to incur significant expenses, and if we fail to maintain satisfactory
compliance with certain regulations, we may be forced to recall products and cease their
manufacture and distribution, and we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties.

Our businesses are subject to various significant international, federal, state and local
regulations, including but not limited to health and safety, packaging, product content, labor and
import/export regulations. These regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to
become more stringent over time. We may be required to incur significant expenses to comply
with these regulations or to remedy violations of these regulations. Any failure by us to comply
with applicable government regulations could also result in cessation of our operations or
portions of our operations, product recalls or impositions of fines and restrictions on our ability
to carry on or expand our operations. In addition, because many of our products are regulated or
sold into regulated industries, we must comply with additional regulations in marketing our
products.

Our products and operations are also often subject to the rules of industrial standards bodies,
like the International Standards Organization, as well as regulation by other agencies such as the
U.S. Federal Communications Commission. We also must comply with work safety rules. If we fail
to adequately address any of these regulations, our businesses could be harmed.

Some of our chemical analysis products are used in conjunction with chemicals whose
manufacture, processing, distribution and notification requirements are regulated by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency under the Toxic Substances Control Act, and by regulatory
bodies in other countries with laws similar to the Toxic Substances Control Act. We must conform
the manufacture, processing, distribution of and notification about these chemicals to these laws
and adapt to regulatory requirements in all countries as these requirements change. If we fail to
comply with these requirements in the manufacture or distribution of our products, then we could
be made to pay civil penalties, face criminal prosecution and, in some cases, be prohibited from
distributing our products in commerce until the products or component substances are brought
into compliance.
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We are subject to laws and regulations governing government contracts, and failure to
address these laws and regulations or comply with government contracts could harm our
business by leading to a reduction in revenue associated with these customers.

We have agreements relating to the sale of our products to government entities and, as a
result, we are subject to various statutes and regulations that apply to companies doing business
with the government. The laws governing government contracts differ from the laws governing
private contracts. For example, many government contracts contain pricing terms and conditions
that are not applicable to private contracts. We are also subject to investigation for compliance
with the regulations governing government contracts. A failure to comply with these regulations
might result in suspension of these contracts, or administrative penalties.

Third parties may claim that we are infringing their intellectual property, and we could
suffer significant litigation or licensing expenses or be prevented from selling products.

While we do not believe that any of our products infringe the valid intellectual property
rights of third parties, we may be unaware of intellectual property rights of others that may cover
some of our technology, products or services. Any litigation regarding patents or other intellectual
property could be costly and time-consuming and could divert our management and key personnel
from our business operations. The complexity of the technology involved and the uncertainty of
intellectual property litigation increase these risks. Claims of intellectual property infringement
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might also require us to enter into costly license agreements. However, we may not be able to
obtain license agreements on terms acceptable to us, or at all. We also may be subject to
significant damages or injunctions against development and sale of certain of our products.

We often rely on licenses of intellectual property useful for our businesses. We cannot ensure
that these licenses will be available in the future on favorable terms or at all. In addition, our
position with respect to the negotiation of licenses has changed as a result of our agreement to
divest our semiconductor products business. In the past, we benefited from a substantial
intellectual property portfolio, including the intellectual property that is being sold to the buyer of
our semiconductor products business, when asserting counterclaims and negotiating cross-licenses
with third parties. Our divestiture agreement gives us only a limited ability to sublicense the
semiconductor products intellectual property portfolio. Accordingly, we may be unable to obtain
agreements on terms as favorable as we may have been able to obtain if we could have licensed
the intellectual property portfolio we owned prior to the divestiture agreement.

Third parties may infringe our intellectual property, and we may expend significant
resources enforcing our rights or suffer competitive injury.

Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of
patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, confidentiality provisions and licensing
arrangements to establish and protect our proprietary rights. If we fail to successfully enforce our
intellectual property rights, our competitive position could suffer, which could harm our operating
results.

Our pending patent and trademark registration applications may not be allowed, or
competitors may challenge the validity or scope of our patents, copyrights or trademarks. In
addition, our patents may not provide us a significant competitive advantage.

We may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and police our intellectual
property rights. We may not be able to detect infringement and our competitive position may be
harmed before we do so. In addition, competitors may design around our intellectual property
rights or develop competing technologies. Intellectual property rights and our ability to enforce
them may also be unavailable or limited in some foreign countries, which could make it easier for
competitors to capture market share and result in lost revenues. Furthermore, some intellectual
property rights are licensed to other companies, allowing them to compete with us using that
intellectual property.

If we suffer loss to our factories, facilities or distribution system due to catastrophe, our
operations could be seriously harmed.

Our factories, facilities and distribution system are subject to catastrophic loss due to fire,
flood, terrorism or other natural or man-made disasters. In particular, several of our facilities
could be subject to a catastrophic loss caused by earthquake due to their locations. Qur
production facilities, headquarters and Agilent Technologies Laboratories in California, and our
production facilities in Washington and Japan, are all located in areas with above average seismic
activity. If any of these facilities were to experience a catastrophic loss, it could disrupt our
operations, delay production, shipments and revenue and result in large expenses to repair or
replace the facility. In addition, since we have recently consolidated our manufacturing facilities,
we are more likely to experience an interruption to our operations in the event of a catastrophe
in any one location. Although we carry insurance for property damage and business interruption,
we do not carry insurance or financial reserves for interruptions or potential losses arising from
earthquakes or terrorism.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried out an evaluation required by Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
Agilent’s “disclosure controls and procedures” and “internal control over financial reporting” as
of the end of the period covered by our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The evaluation of Agilent’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over
financial reporting included a review of our objectives and processes, implementation by the
company and the effect on the information generated for use in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.
In the course of this evaluation and in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of
2002, we sought to identify material weaknesses in our controls, to determine whether we had
identified any acts of fraud involving personnel who have a significant role in our internal control
over financial reporting that would have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements, and to confirm that any necessary corrective action, including process improvements,
were being undertaken. Our evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures will be done
quarterly and management will report the effectiveness of our controls and procedures can be
reported in our periodic reports filed with the SEC. Our internal control over financial reporting
is also evaluated on an ongoing basis by Agilent’s internal auditors and by other personnel in
Agilent’s finance organization. The overall goals of these evaluation activities are to monitor our
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting and to make
modifications as necessary. We intend to regularly evaluate our processes and procedures and
make improvements as circumstances warrant.

Because of its inherent limitations, disclosure controls and procedures and internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. In addition, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Management necessarily applied its judgment in assessing the
benefits of controls relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. The design of any system of
controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed with the objective of ensuring that
(1) information required to be disclosed in the company’s reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) information is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Based on their evaluation, Agilent’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
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and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those
policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Company’s management and directors; and (c) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Based on our
evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of October 31, 2005.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2005 and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2005 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears in this
Annual Report.

Management’s Consideration of the 2004 Restatement

As disclosed in Note 1A, “Restatement of 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements’, to our
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report, we restated our previously
issued 2004 financial statements to correct for a misstatement in our provision for income taxes.
This restatement resulted from a material weakness in the accounting for income taxes related to
the classification of certain income tax effects between the provision for income taxes and other
comprehensive income. A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. During 2005,
management remediated the control deficiency that resulted in the 2004 restatement.
Consequently, this matter did not constitute a control deficiency as of October 31, 2005.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
Agilent’s last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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